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CHAIR VICTORINO: .. .(gavel)... Good morning and aloha, everyone. Welcome to the Policy
and Intergovernmental Affairs Committee meeting for November 2, 2015. It is 9:04.
Sorry for the little delay in starting. But before I start, let me say we have a couple of
issues today. First of all, our Polycom is not operational today. We have right in front
Ms. Willenbrink three cell phones directed to our District Offices. So we will do the
best we can for communicating with our District Offices during the course of the
meeting, especially in the area of public testimony. Our apologies for the problems,
they've been working on it since early this morning and just could not get it fixed, so
we're very sorry about that but we will do the best we can. Before we start the meeting
and talking about cell phones and noise-making devices, I'd like to ask everyone if
they would please turn off their cell phones or put it on a non-noise-making
modem [sic], I'd appreciate it. Decorum will be followed in the Chamber. At this time,
I'd like to introduce the Members of our Committee. I am the Chair, Michael Victorino.
Our Vice-Chair of the Committee is from South Maui, Mr. Don Couch.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Good morning, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning, sir. Our good-looking gentleman from East Maui,
Mr. Robert Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning. Our young lady from Upcountry, Ms. Gladys Balsa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning. Our lady from West Maui, Ms. Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, good morning, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning. And the wonderful young lady from Molokai, Ms. Stacy
Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Aloha, Chair. Good morning.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Aloha. At this time, Mr. Hokama is excused. He will be joining us very
shortly. We have also the Vice-Chair of the Committee, Mr. Don Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And the Chair of the Council.. .1 should say the Vice-Chair
of the Council. And the Chair of the Council, Mr. Mike White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning, gentlemen and ladies. Thank you very, very much.
From the Administration, I have Mr. Ed Kushi, First Deputy Corporation Counsel.
MR. KUSHI: Good morning.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Kushi, good morning. And our invaluable Staff, Ms. Kim
Willenbrink, our Legislative Analyst.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning. And of course our Committee Secretary Ms. Tammy
Frias.
MS. FRIAS: Good morning.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning. At this time, I'm going to make a quick check to see if
we can... how well our communication with the District Offices will be using the cell
phones. Let me start with our Hana Office. Dawn Lono, can you hear me?
MS. LONO: Yes. Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office. Can you
hear me?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Very faintly. I ... is that the loudest we can get it? Can we put the
microphone any closer?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Try.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. Hang on. Dawn, once again, can you hear me?
MS. LONO: Yeah. Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office. Can you
hear me?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes we can. Thank you. And I think that may be the best we can do,
ladies and gentlemen, so we will proceed from there. Denise Fernandez from our
Lanai Office. Denise, can you hear me?
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MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai. I can hear you
loud and clear.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. We, I guess the problem is we can't hear you folks so
clearly, so. And Ella Alcon from the Molokai Office. Ella, can you hear us?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Yours coming through pretty clear. Thank you. We will be
taking up testimony on one item today, the item is PIA-54, County Manager Form of
Governance. The Committee is in receipt of the following: County Communication
15-247, from Council Chair Michael White, transmitting a resolution entitled
Establishing a Special Committee on County Governance. The purpose of the
resolution is to form a nine-member special committee for a term of 180 days, selected
by the Council Chair, to consider the merits of county manager form of governance for
the County of Maui, and if warranted, would make recommendations to the County
Council on how this form should be structured. Secondly, you have a correspondence
dated October 22, 2015, from Committee Chair Michael P. Victorino, transmitting a
resolution entitled Establishing a Special Committee on County Governance. The
purpose of the resolution is to form an 11-member special committee for a term of
365 days to consider the merits of a county manager form of governance for the
County of Maui, and, if warranted, make recommendations to the County Council as
to whether the Charter should be amended to establish a county manager form of
government. So I would like at this time to start public testimony, if there is no
objections?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Please sign up if you're interested in testifying outside in
the lobby of the 8th floor. Testimony will be limited to three minutes. At
two-and-a-half minutes, the light will turn yellow, and on the third minute, when it
turns three minutes, I should say, the light will start blinking red. Please state your
name and who you are representing. Established connections with our District Offices
as you're well aware of, is spotty at best, but we will rotate at a certain point to see if
there are any testifiers in our District Offices. So with no objections...I already asked
that, I would like to start public testimony. First testifier this morning in the Chamber
is Wes Anderson and he's speaking on his behalf, and again, PIA. ..in fact, there should
be nothing else but PIA-54 so I'm not going to even cover that again, and then followed
by Gregory Evans. Good morning.

...BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY..
MR. ANDERSON: Good morning.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You can lift up the.. .lift up the mic. There you go.
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MR. ANDERSON: Thank you for the opportunity of addressing this issue. I'm here to, on
behalf of myself, over 25-year resident of Maui, and I support Councilman White's
proposal on this issue. And I would like to see an expedited and in-depth study of this
and see that it is passed. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any questions? Yes, sir?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Yeah, Mr. Chair, can we get the testifiers to identify themselves before
they speak?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh yeah, could you identify yourself, Mr. Anderson, please?
MR. ANDERSON: I'm Wesley Anderson of Pukalani.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Anderson. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
next testifier will be Gregory Evans and he is with the Cost of Government
Commission, followed by Diana Custer. Good morning.
MR. EVANS: Good morning. My name's Gregory Evans, I'm the Chair of the Cost of
Government Commission. And I wanted to testify, go over it, regarding the
establishment of this special committee on establishing a council [sic] manager form of
government. This as many of you know is a topic that we've chosen ourselves to
investigate at the request of County Council and the Mayor. It's an important topic
and it has a lot of variables to it. As we've gotten into the preliminary research for our
own investigation, we found that there are even more facets to this than we originally
anticipated, and we applaud any effort that the Council or anybody wants to make to
look into it because it deserves a lot of focus and attention. To that end, I would
support the extended timeframe and the 11-member commission. I would as well
recommend that the membership of that board or that commission or the special
committee, excuse me, be considered carefully, and that those members would be a
good representative sample for Maui County. I did notice the recommendations did
not include any members of a Mayoral Administration and I would recommend that
that be included. Additionally, as we dig in, as the Cost of Government Committee
into this topic we will, we've already realized our own limitations as a volunteer board
that there are going to be a few areas that we can focus on and many areas that we
cannot. And as our timeframes, it's looking like won't overlap as much as originally,
as we originally anticipated. We would welcome ourselves as a reference or offer
ourselves as a reference for offering areas that this Committee could investigate and
get involved in researching. And we would welcome any invitation to participate in
that way. That's all I have.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Evans. Questions for the testifier? Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Mr. Evans, for being here. So
you guys have been looking into this already is what you're saying? In parts?
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MR. EVANS: Yes. We've begun pulling information on councilmember ... council Isici
manager forms of government, and we've, are beginning to decide which areas we are
going to investigate specifically. It's clear, it's become abundantly clear that it's a big
enough topic that we will not be able to offer a comprehensive, and I think that was
obvious from the beginning. But we want to offer a meaningful report that focuses on
several different aspects of this change.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: And how long have you been doing this?
MS. EVANS: It was decided the meeting before last so two months.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MS. EVANS: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: And you meet once a month?
MS. EVANS: We meet, yeah, monthly.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. Thank you very much, Mr. Evans,
for being here and your service on the Cost of Government Commission, it's a tough
one. I'm kind of interested, I'm hearing what you're saying and I'm very, I support the
idea that, you know, this is not an easy thing to do. What kind of a timeframe have
you given yourselves? When do you hope to complete whatever you going to try to do?
MR. EVANS: We would like to have a ... we're shooting to have a rough draft done in January,
and we'd like to have a report completed by March, depending on the content and
what, you know, what we get into. That's not a hard deadline but that's our goal.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. I think it's kind of ambitious but that's
just me.
MR. EVANS: It certainly is. I ... that's, for that reason we are narrowing our focus to try to
make it less ambitious and more effective, and that's again why as we select our areas
of focus there are areas that we're obviously not selecting but are still important and
we can contribute to this special committee by offering, you know, that as well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'm sure that whatever information you can dig up will be
helpful. It seems like this is a very big deal.
MR. EVANS: It is. There's no question about that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.

S
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Other, anyone else have any questions for the testifier?
Yes, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you for being here,
Mr. Evans.
MR. EVANS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And I'm assuming that your focus will be on the cost
relationships of the, of whatever models that you're able to find. Is that correct?
MR. EVANS: Yeah, efficiency and effectiveness is our charter and so that's where well be
focused.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. And you wouldn't be actually drafting any legislation,
you would just be simply writing a report?
MR. EVANS: No, yeah, it would be a report based on our findings of the efficiency and
effectiveness of this change in our, you know, in what we, our opinion as a committee
or as a board is.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MR. EVANS: And it wouldn't be, again, it wouldn't cover the whole scope, because that's not
something that we can realistically do. But it will be what we believe to be the key,
several of the most important aspects of it.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, great. And I think all of us here have appreciated many
of the reports that have come out of the Cost of Government so we appreciate your
willingness to take a look at this. Thank you.
MR. EVANS: I appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And, Mr. White, I would like to ask you a question, if... did
you not ask them to take a look at this at one point? Did you not write them a letter
asking them to look at it?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yes, I did. Yeah. And...
CHAIR VICTORINO: If, I would like to clarify that. I've been told that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. I did so because I think as Mr. Evans points out, this is a
very broad issue, and because they're involved in looking at the cost of government
and the efficiencies of government, I felt it would be a very valid augmentation to
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whatever the committee does. And so I think it sounds like they're moving in the right
direction. So thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Okay. Any other questions for Mr. Evans? Seeing none,
thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Sorry. Chair? Chair, real quick.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh yes. Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thanks. And thank you, Mr. Evans, for all the work you're
doing. So are, have you folks gotten to the point where you can look at existing
municipalities that already incorporate this type of program, but the ones that have
transitioned into say our form of mayoral government into this County managing type
and that cost, has that topic been looked at?
MR. EVANS: Not yet. I'm trying to think. We are going to find what we believe to be the best
representative, you know, in recent transitions that offer a close comparison. That's
frankly impossible. Maui County's about as unique as it gets, but we will look for
comparable, and we found, you know, a couple but we have not dug into that
information yet.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well, very good. Thank you -MR. EVANS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --for your work. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. And again, Mr. Evans, as we
proceed with, after testimony and get into deliberations, will you be here?
MR. EVANS: Yes, Ill be here as often as my schedule allows.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, Chair, the reason I'm asking is I'm wondering if we might
need some of these folks for resources.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I have asked them to be. Mr. Kailiponi has willingly said he'd be a
resource person at a moment when we need it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, so I have already asked, and others too. So as we go on, I will
announce as we go on, who I would like to see and if with your permission or if you
want somebody as a resource person, please bring it forward. Okay?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Just trying to cut out some duplication.
Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you very much, and I appreciate that.
MR. EVANS: And we're.. .if I can add? We're happy to participate and we would... more than
avoiding duplication, we want to work with the special committee to evaluate this from
every angle. It's such an important topic that we would love to work together.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Absolutely. Thank you very much, Mr. Evans.
MR. EVANS: Yes, you're welcome.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Next testifier, Diana Custer, followed by Barbara Fernandez.
MS. CUSTER: Good morning, Chair Victorino.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning.
MS. CUSTER: And good morning, Councilmembers. You know me more from my work with
trying to improve animal control and animal welfare in Maui County. And this is such
an important topic, it got me to leave towards beautiful Hana and come to town and
speak about this with you. Myself, I am representing myself but as an educated
community member because I am a retired State and County employee, Maui County
employee as I worked as a scientist at the Maui Police Department. So I have worked
within the system and I have also worked with the system to try and create change
which I started that project in 2010, so that's been five years now. So I think that
gives me some insight into how to help this County improve. As well as increasing
effectiveness and quality of work, we also need to think about increasing
accountability and oversight which I have found with my work seems to be lacking.
Now the Department I worked in, the Maui Police Department has accountability and
oversight because there is a commission. The commission hires the Police Chief and
the Police Department is accountable to that commission. So accountability is very
important. A note on that, in Las Vegas, they have a commission managing the police
commission, so really what we're dealing with here is how do we choose the most
effective and accountable leadership for our community. And anyone who says that
one individual is not that important has never worked for a fabulous leader nor have
they worked for a poor leader, because a leader is important, very important. In this
instance, it's incredibly important because we have appointment of department heads.
This is probably for me the area I'm most passionate about, because when you read
the Charter, you will see that there is really little experience required from our
department heads and they shift with the wind of the elected official. And then if you
go and you look at the campaign contributions to the elected official, you start to get a
look into how much money it costs to get one of those positions, anywhere from
10,000 to $15,000 donations to the Mayor from department heads with very little
qualifications. So that is an area where it becomes critical mass when you look at
changing the system. The first question is, is this system going to put in a better
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leader who has increased accountability, increased effectiveness? And that's a yes or
no for me at this point, so we need this taskforce to look at this and say what's best
and what are the pieces to the puzzle that will make this a complete and beneficial
change which comes into the power of appointing and the job descriptions of
department heads. When I first started my project on helping animal control -MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MS. CUSTER: --I did a request for information, and I was told that the records were lost
from 2007 to 2009.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Diana, can I ask you to conclude, please?
MS. CUSTER: Okay. So anyway, I just want to say that this taskforce is incredibly
important, and I urge you to do one, whether it's the 11 or the 9 or somewhere in
between. The moment in time is ripe and right to do this. Thank you very much.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Diana. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much.
MS. CUSTER: You're welcome.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Next testifier is Barbara Fernandez, followed by Paul Kailiponi.
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair Victorino and Councilmembers, on this Policy and
Intergovernmental Affairs Committee. My name is Barbara Halai Fernandez. I'm here
to testify on PIA-54, and I'm testifying just on my own, not on behalf of any
organization. I'd just like to share my manao. I think a lot of the community.. .the
paper has done a good job. So I brought both of them. I'm here because of this, and
then I've heard the buzz around town for the last few months about this county
manager position. Actually, Chair Victorino, I'm here because of you, because I watch
the TV and all this and how I observe you getting it done attitude as does the Council.
You and the Councilmembers have a lot on your plate right now, and when Members
are eager to listen but also get the item moving so the process of the resolution can be
moved along, not just sit in committee for this and that reason, but still inputs would
still be allowed on this. To move it in a timely manner, not one year, so my manao is I
do agree with the 180 days beginning on the date of the adoption. I feel it allows
enough time. A non-political position makes sense for our community now, and
having nine committee members with a broad range of knowledge for this position I
feel is also great. Less than three Councilmembers makes sense to me as it allows
again more committee members from the community, and it would ensure that the
appointed county manager would have professional high standards. As far as who or
how to pick, yes, we still are a small community and we take care of each other by
sharing and showing that we know what local values are. You can be born and raised
here and you still don't know what local values are, so it's us as the community to
show this new county manager position our aloha personally. I feel--this is just on the
side--that it's important also to open this position for applicants outside of Hawaii so
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some of our people who've had to move away in order to get a good job or education,
All allow them a chance to apply and move back home. So I'm glad I came today just
because of what I've been seeing, so I encourage, let's adopt the original resolution and
let the folks of Maui County decide with their vote in 2016 on the Charter amendment.
Mahalo for your time.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
Ms. Fernandez.
MR. FERNANDEZ: Thanks, Mr. Victorino.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Next testifier, Paul Kailiponi, followed by Buck Joiner. And Paul is on
the Cost of Government Commission and he is the Vice-Chair. Good morning, Paul.
MR. KAILIPONI: Good morning, Councilmember Victorino. Good morning, Councilmembers.
My name is Paul Kailiponi, I am the Vice-Chair of the Cost of Government
Commission. I am here to talk a little bit about the process that the Cost of
Government Commission went through when we were asked to investigate this topic
by Chairman Mike White. He had initially sent us a letter concerning the...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Paul, do me a favor? One second. I have been negligible and I
apologize, I forgot to recognize the presence of Councilmember Hokama from Lanai.
Sorry, Mr. Hokama, I failed to recognize you. So excuse me for interrupting your...
MR. KAILIPONI: That's all right.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Welcome, Mr. Hokama.
MR. KAILIPONI: Thank you. We had initially taken a look at the resolution sent through by
Chairman White, and as Mr. Evans mentioned, we were absolutely fine with the
establishment of a special committee. We had a couple of questions for the Chairman
which we sent in a letter to him. One of the reasons for this letter is because we
wanted to avoid the duplication of effort between the two committees, ourselves the
Cost of Government Commission and the special committee that was to be created, for
several reasons. Investigating the exact same topics was of concern to us. It was also
a concern that potentially we would be asking the same people the same questions if
there was, if the two bodies were looking at exactly the same topics. And we were
concerned with the possibility that if both committees were looking at the exact same
topics with little to no coordination between the two, that there may be confusion in
the results that would then come, especially if there was a difference in methodology
in coming to recommendations and if there was different ways in which they went
about looking at these kinds of things. These were all issues expressed in our
meetings to his staffer Troy Hashimoto who attends our meetings as well as to him in
a letter. We received a response from Chairman White which did very little to clearly
delineate those tasks. However, despite those things, we went forward with our own
investigation and circulated to all of the Councilmembers the topics that we were going
to be looking into. We then found that there was this debate going on with the debate
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being around the extension of the committee from 180 to 365 days, as well as an
expansion of the committee members from 9 to 11. Ultimately as Mr. Evans
mentioned, we are very heartened by the establishment of an additional timeframe for
this. The one reason being that it would mean that there wouldn't be such a
simultaneous overlap of our investigations, and that indeed the special committee
could then base a lot of their recommendations off of the work that we are trying to do
already. There are however some issues that we had with the resolution as proposed
by Mike Victorino. The primary one being that as we go through public testimony
from individuals, one of their concerns continually is that there is a, there's too close
of a connection between businesses and the elected official, and because of that, that
there were concerns that on our side that if there was explicit business executives and
hospitality executives on this commission, it would essentially be the same thing or at
least have the perception that there was a close connection between the two. Despite
these things, the Cost of Government Commission will continue to go on with our
investigation, clearly delineating exactly what we're going to be looking at and sharing
that with the Councilmembers as well as the Council, as well as the County Mayoral
Office as needed. I would like to stipulate to the Councilmembers our abilities. I
think that we as a Committee have the makeup, we have an outline, and we have the
expertise.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Paul, can you conclude, please?
MR. KAILIPONI: I will.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. KAILIPONI: Yes, sir. Have the expertise to provide a very high-quality academic,
research-based, evidence-based report and recommendations that can be gathered
from an independent source which is what our council.. .what our Commission is.
Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Paul, for being
here this morning. You mentioned that there might be some concern about business
executives and officials being too close and that's the proposed makeup of this special
committee. Did you have concerns or other concerns about the makeup?
MR. KAILIPONI: Mr. Evans already mentioned one which was to have someone from a past
Mayoral body be included in that as well. And ultimately what we want is something
that's representative of Maui, whether that be greater input from communities,
community groups. And also we want to verify that the expertise will be there in order
to perform a useful and appropriate recommendations for not just the Council but also
for the Mayor's Office as well as the public.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Other questions for the testifier? I have one.
MR. KAILIPONI: Yes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And I thank you. And again, mine just like Mr. White's are really
template resolutions that we will be working on and maybe changes can be made, in
fact nothing's in stone, I never intended it to be that. These were suggestions that the
community brought to me, because it has been all about business oriented, business
oriented, we want a professional business manager as our county manager. So I
thought the expertise that you were referring to would be there and I think that's
really necessitated in this respect. But I'm open to change. But my question to you
is, once this is formulated, whenever, whatever we come up with, your Cost of
Government Committee [sic] could be then assigned certain segments so that we
wouldn't have a duplication by this special committee and then come down the road
and get together and trying to put all your ideas together and then come up with a
suggestion. Is that what you're referring to?
MR. KAILIPONI: I think a collaborative effort between the two committees is ultimately what
we want.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
MR. KAILIPONI: You know we want there to be dialogue and we want there to be an
openness and transparency to our process as much as possible, because I see that as
being the key to eliminating any conflicts in the recommendations that we then give.
Or if there are differences of opinion that they can be stipulated and very open and a
very transparent way to everyone. Inevitably there are going to be things that we
disagree with.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, yes.
MR. KAILIPONI: There are things that everybody disagrees with, but as long as we're open
and clear about what method we're using in coming to our recommendations, we can
discuss them in some meaningful way.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And you know what, I want to also thank you, for a young
gentleman in our community...
MR. KAILIPONI: I'm not that young.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, I know how old you are, so, Paul, don't go there. And you're, you
know, young enough to be my son so that's young enough. But I really thank you for
being a part of this process, because again I would wish that more young people would
take ownership. This is your future we're talking about, not so much ours but their
future, your future. And so thank you very, very much for being here. Any other
questions? Yes, Mr. White?

- 13 -

POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 2, 2015

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Kailiponi, for being willing to
have the Cost of Government Commission work in an advisory role to the community,
because I think you do bring great perspectives. I think some of us have been
concerned about the independence of the Cost of Government Commission.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. White, I've been informed you have to talk a little bit more into the
mic, they're not hearing you very clearly. Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Sorry about that.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Actually even getting close doesn't really sound all that good.
But did you hear my...
MR. KAILIPONI: You mentioned the independence of the Cost of Government Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right. And, you know, I believe I see new leadership and that it
may be going in a very positive direction, so I look forward to your offer to work in an
advisory capacity with the committee should it be formed. So thank you very much
for being here. Thank you, Chair.
MR. KAILIPONI: May I mention something about the independence, the supposed
independence of the Cost of Government Commission?
CHAIR VICTORINO: With no objections, yes, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
MR. KAILIPONI: I think one of the main things about the Cost of Government Commission,
something that I really enjoy about it is that it is, the appointment to the Commission
itself is one that goes through both the Mayor and the Council. We are a body that
largely existed before this topic even came up. Prior to Chairman White's letter, we
were not planning on investigating this topic at all, and it was only at the behest of his
office as well as the Mayor's Office that we decided to shift gears and tackle this.
Perhaps something we shouldn't have done. But anyway it's, I would like to state
clearly that in working with the County Auditor and the County Auditor has been a
great resource to us, because the County Auditor puts very strong import on his
independence as something and he advises us. And Mr. Kushi is also a very good one
to keep us in line when there is something that may in anyway endanger that
perspective of independence which we value very highly as well. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Kailiponi, for being here. Next testifier is
Buck Joiner, and after Buck, I will check with our District Offices to see if there's any
testifiers that may want to testify. Mr. Joiner, good morning.
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MR. JOINER: Good morning. Aloha kakou. Buck Joiner, standing at this podium for more
than three decades, and I am also a former member of several County commissions
and committees, including traffic safety, grants review, and the Cost of Government
Commission. This nation was founded on the principle of three branches of
government, the executive, the legislative, and the judicial. And I feel that this
proposal to replace the Mayor with a non-elected official is not in agreement with that
principle. There's always been conflict between the Mayor and the Council. I go back
to the days of Hannibal Tavares and remember conflicts particularly with Linda Lingle.
And then when Lingle became Mayor, she had conflicts with everybody. I was one of
the people on her very long blacklist. Wayne Nishiki, you can remember the days of
Wayne Nishiki. He was in here and he threw rocks and threw rocks, conflicts with
everybody. I never saw the man come up with a single proposal to fix anything, but he
got reelected over and over and over. Kimo Apana, everybody loved Kimo and he loved
everybody. Arakawa one, in his first term he was awesome, he really worked hard at
making the County work, and he, and his department heads volunteered every
weekend, they led by example, it was incredible. Then we had Charmaine, and
Charmaine and Arakawa were, both lost the election because they were stuck in a
damned if you do and damned if you don't situation which was no win and they both
lost. So and now Arakawa is back. I would like to speak very loudly that I want to
keep the elected officials as the elected judicial, or excuse me, legislative and mayoral,
and I believe that that is in keeping with the form of this government, and I speak
strongly to that. If you want to investigate this you can but I don't think it's a good
idea. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Joiner. I appreciate your comments. Yes, Mr. Couch,
questions for Mr. Joiner?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Joiner, for being here. And
thank you for your long continued stance up there at the podium. Question for you,
you said you are okay with investigating it, you just don't like the, that potential
outcome of going to a county manager?
MR. JOINER: Yes, correct. I just don't think that an appointed county manager is the
proper way to go. I think that that should be an elected official that everybody in the
County has an opportunity to have a say for who the Mayor is.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. But you're okay with the, one of these commissions?
MR. JOINER: If you want to waste the money, go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Other questions for Mr. Joiner? Seeing none, thank you very much,
Buck, for being here. So let's go to our District Offices. First of all, let's start with
Hana. Dawn, is there anyone wishing to testify?
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MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Denise on Lanai, Denise, is there anyone wishing to testify?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is. . .(inaudible). . . on Lanai waiting to testify.
CHAIR VICTORINO: She said no one, right?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Could you repeat yourself, please?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one on Lanai waiting to testify.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Thank you, Denise.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Denise. Sorry. And on Molokai, Ella, is there anyone
wishing to testify?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And well check a little bit later because we have right now
signed up 22 testifiers, so we will check, maybe in about 10 testifiers, we will go back
to our District Offices. At this time I would like to call on Mr. Jim Smith and he's
testifying on his behalf, followed by Dave DeLeon and he is also testifying on his
behalf. Mr. Smith? God bless somebody who sneezed.
MR. SMITH: Aloha, Mr. Chair and Members of the PIA Committee.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Aloha.
MR. SMITH: My name is Jim Smith. We really don't need another committee, Okay. Period.
I'm a bit concerned. I've always thought that to err is human. Okay. And this
proposal to take away my vote for the Mayor, to diminish the value of my vote by
50 percent on the basis that a dollar is more valuable is kind of offensive. So that
whole subject myself doesn't need to be discussed, but it will if you take up as
seriously the proposition before you which is that we should contemplate because of
the failed executive performances the, a removal of responsibility from that
performance excluding your own failed, okay, performance. So if you're failed, we
replace this failure by your failure, so that's wonderful. It doesn't leave me
encouraged because my vote has been diminished by 50 percent. Now the vote is
what humanizes the process. You take that out and you have a corporation going for
profit. But with a vote, you've got one person named Jim Smith with the same power
as another one named Alan Arakawa. Isn't that a kick in the pants? So this is what is
at issue. So I don't even think it needs to be considered seriously by this body. One of
the things that cues me to this is the notion that complexity of this process of
governance for our community is just too great for this process to continue. Okay.
Well 20 out of the 30 most popular municipalities, okay, have a council-mayor
structure, and you would think that complexity and population would correlate but it
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doesn't, so why are you bringing up this nonsense? Well, it's because of superiority. I
am so superior sitting in my walled community that I can see that we don't need this
crap, we don't need these guys getting paid off and all that kind. You guys don't have
any integrity, because I know what the common good is, I've got my millions and I've
succeeded so I know what the common good is, and the issue is does my vote stay the
way it should with 50 percent less or at the same level? And you are going to even
deal with this question, it's ridiculous on its face. So you've got the Cost of
Government Commission doing whatever you want to do. You gotta remember to err
is human and you've got more important fish to fry coming up this next term with an
election. Why? Why? Because The Maui News, okay, The Maui News wrote a letter, a
viewpoint by Alan Arakawa when he responded to your taking away his power
regarding three different budget criteria. And he wrote that the Council was -MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. SMITH: --violating this. Okay. Violating the same Charter amendment that this
resolution says you want to stop from violating. Okay. He says you're doing that.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Smith, can I ask you to conclude?
MR. SMITH: Ina minute.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I know you like.. .yes, sorry. I made the rules and the rules will stand
for everyone.
MR. SMITH: Okay, do I have a minute? Or do you want it...
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, no.
MR. SMITH: Oh.
CHAIR VICTORINO: It's just three minutes. You have, you can conclude with five seconds to
make your concluding statement, please.
MR. SMITH: Aloha.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you very much. Questions for Mr. Smith? Thank you very
much. Next testifier is Dave DeLeon and Dave is speaking on his behalf, followed by
Mike Moran from the Kihei Community Association.
MR. DeLEON: Aloha. It's always kind of an interesting follow-up to Jim Smith. I'm Dave
DeLeon speaking as an individual citizen, as a political scientist, and as a member of
the 2012 Charter Commission and the person who made the motion that the Charter
Commission agreed to that this topic be thoroughly studied because that Commission
lacked the time for such a complex topic. I am open to the possibility of restructuring
our County to a more professional, more efficient, more effective form of government.
What I'm not open to is a rush to judgment that because this form of government
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reportedly works so well in other mainland communities that importing that form of
government is a no-brainer. Here's some other no-brainer import ideas: mongoose to
kill rats and albizia to add value to our, for our forestry. Learned and capable folks
went out of their way to make those introductions happen without first studying the
potential impacts. The rest is history. Just because a government comes under the
general rubric of county does not mean that they're all really the same thing. I would
wager that 95 percent of all American counties also function in conjunction with a
variety of municipalities and townships. Most have legislative bodies that are elected
under the principle of one man, one vote. Most are made up of communities with a
relatively common cultural norm and do not include many Native Americans. In many
of those communities, the voters have the last say over their budgets and bond floats
through initiatives and referendums. Does this proposal include that form of level of
democracy as well? None will be composed of three islands in the middle of the Pacific
Ocean with very unique cultures on each. It's a comparison of apples to guava. Last
week, Mayor Arakawa brought an ambitious plan to attack the problem of
homelessness in Maui County to the County Council. Under a county manager
system, who would make that proposal? How does the county manager know that she
has the clearance to make such a proposal if the Council's actions are always on the
record? Does a county manager system fail? Yes, they do. Just ask the voters of Bell,
California. Or the communities that where legislative bodies repeatedly fire their
managers every six months. As a journalist, I follow the adage: "If your mother tells
you she loves you, check it out." What is proposed is a complete restructuring of our
County government. We need to take the time to do the homework that will tell us
whether we can expect it to work here or not, before leaping to the judgment that this
proposal is a no-brainer. Mahalo.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much. Mike Moran, President of the Kihei Community Association,
followed by Michael Trotter [sic].
MR. MORAN: Aloha, Chair Victorino and Committee Members. Mike Moran for the Kihei
Community Association.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Aloha, sir.
MR. MORAN: Last month we testified to Council emphasizing the necessity to examine
potential change and explore what is the best direction to take, so we continue to be in
favor of going forward establishing a blue ribbon committee on this matter. If such a
special committee is approved which we expect then the details can determine
potential successful outcome. We are in favor of allowing this term to extend up to six
months and not expanding it to a full year. As it is our understanding that once this
special committee concludes, there will still be continued discussion and evaluation by
this Committee, input from the Cost of Government Commission, continuous
community input, and then finally back to the Council, the process could extend for
years before the voters can cast a ballot. Please do not deny the voters this
opportunity. If they decide the change would be beneficial, should we not proceed
quickly to reap the benefit? Conversely, if not beneficial, let the government move on
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to the business of the community. We ask the Committee to widen the potential scope
of who would be qualified to serve here. The restrictions in the proposed resolution
could deny any qualified individual with extensive knowledge on a county manager
system of governance while stocking of many, even all who have none. For the three
Councilmembers, we feel that is kind of redundant since the committee findings would
go back to the Council for making final determination, so having three
Councilmembers on this committee making a decision to recommend to the Council
what to do, that's where we come up with the term redundant. KCA is making plans
for our first community meeting of the new year on January 19, 2016 establishing a
balanced panel for further discussion to examine this very issue as our way of
stimulating interest and discussion among our members and guests. Mahalo.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Moran. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you very much, sir. Next testifier, Michael Trotter [sic], followed by Norm Brezeen [sic].
And unless I state otherwise, they're all speaking on their behalf. Go ahead, Michael.
MR. TROTTO: Good morning, Chair Victorino and Members of the Committee. Thank you
for the opportunity to speak on this item today. I am Michael Trotto, a resident of
Kihei speaking as an individual. The concept of restructuring our County government
is most interesting and should be given ample scrutiny and study before any decisions
are made that will alter the way government functions today. My biggest concern is
that we avoid getting in a hurry to make changes just for sake of change. The idea
that just because it works in another jurisdiction, it will work here in Maui County too
would be a wrong path to follow. We have at our disposal a mechanism already in
place here in the County to establish a special committee that could be formed that
would be dedicated to study this concept. I'm talking about the method that is used
to select members of our most important boards and commissions. Interested and
knowledgeable citizens would be afforded the opportunity to submit their applications
with their qualifications to this body for consideration to serve in this capacity. I
envision a committee of no more than 9 or 11 members that will serve as long as
necessary to fully vet this concept and provide expert recommendations to the County
Council and to the Administration. I cannot stress enough that the idea of
restructuring our County government deserves all the time possible to provide us with
a truly workable system that will serve all of the residents of Maui, Molokai, and
Lanai. I thank you for listening.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Trotter [sic]. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Next testifier is Norm Brezeen [sic], followed by Mark Hyne [sic].
MR. BEZANE: Well my friend, Mr. Victorino, you should know how to pronounce my name
which is Bezane.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Bezane. I'm sorry, I apologize. I apologize.
MR. BEZANE: It's okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I haven't seen you in such a long time I forgot.
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MR. BEZANE: It's okay, just don't do it again.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Mr. Bezane.
MR. BEZANE: I'm Norm Bezane. Many of you know me. I am a resident, have been a
resident of West Maui for 14 years, 21 years as a visitor. I'm a writer and author. I
talk story with many people on, also on the subject of our government. 1 often say if it
makes sense, on Maui we do the opposite. I have an open mind on whether we need a
county manager; however, I must say that I think we would benefit from fresh
thinking from people who know what a park is, who know what a good park is, who
know what good infrastructure is, and who know what good government is. I think
that. . . it's been said that bringing in an outsider, perhaps someone from the mainland
is not a good idea because they don't know our Maui ways, and this often happens in
Kaanapali where general managers are brought in from the mainland and they don't
have a clue and they have no one to advise them on our cultural ways. This can be
overcome with a county manager who has a good advisor who can talk to them about
Maui ways. Mr. White, a friend, has perhaps more managerial experience at his hotel
than anyone on the Council and he should be listened to as a proponent of this
investigation. Mr. Victorino wants a committee to complete the study in a year even
though six months is more than enough time to review in my opinion this topic. This
is not that complicated. Some testifiers have said it's complicated, it's complex. There
are many places in this country that have county or city or village managers, that's an
area of experience, there's a lot of experience, and would not be too difficult to tap into
that experience. We need independent thinkers on this committee who are
open-minded, analytical, and have good communication skills. When I was on the
Maui County Healthcare Taskforce appointed by Speaker Say, I was an independent
voice and I was able to secure as the number one priority for that taskforce the
building of a Maui, of a West Maui hospital.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Norm, can I ask you -MR. BEZANE: Yes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --to conclude, please?
MR. BEZANE: One last sentence.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Please.
MR. BEZANE: If I were asked to become a member of the committee, I would do so with
some enthusiasm because I care about Maui County. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you very much. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you very much, sir. Next up Mark Hyde, followed by Paul James-Brown [sic].
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MR. HYDE: My name is Mark Hyde. I provided the Clerk with a copy of the IBM study that
I've referenced in an e-mail to all of you so that you'll have that at your disposal. By
the way, Norm and I served on the same taskforce, and in the period of four and a half
months we were charted with defining all of the healthcare needs of Maui County,
teasing them all out, stack ranking them for the Legislature so that could form an
action plan, and the committee was entirely composed of citizens and we banged it
out. I think a much more complex task than that which this committee will face. Now
I'm not diminishing the complexity of the task, but as Norm mentioned, this is a
well-established form of government that's been around for 100 years and it is
deployed in multiple jurisdictions across the country. And consequently. . . and I
should say that there are experts who are willing and able to come in and provide
information to this committee to bring people up to speed as to what some of the
pitfalls axe, what some of the advantages are, and to help guide that work quite
quickly. So I agree with The Maui News that time is of the essence and we can get this
job done. I also think there is, you should give some thought to the IBM study which
covered a variety of variation in efficiency performance of the top 100 cities in America,
and it determined that geography was not the guiding issue, it was not demographics,
it came down to quality of management. And it concluded explicitly that the county
manager form of government is 10 percent more effective. Now if you apply that to our
budgets, you can quickly conclude that there are literally billions of dollars at stake in
the future if we stay with the current system versus go to a new system. Secondly,
with regard to the constituency of the committee, I highly recommend that it be
composed only of citizens and not Members of the County Council or the
Administration. You know the people do a pretty darn good job, and the people are
the ones who you trust under the Charter with the Charter Commission. And they
work for free, they work really hard, and they do a great job. In effect what you're
asking here is to form a charter commission offline to address a single issue. There's
also the question of political ambition of some of the Members of the Council, either
for themselves or for others, and that can cast a pall over the work of this group and I
think it should be removed. And as Norm pointed out, there is a significant role for
this Council in formulating the committee, in evaluating the results when it comes
back, so you have a huge role to play but I would say not a role to play on the
committee. Thank you very much.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you very much. I appreciate that. Any questions for the
testifier? Thank you. Next testifier is Mr. Paul James-Brown [sic], and followed by
Nelly [sic] Woods.
MR. JANES-BROWN: My name is Paul Janes-Brown, I live in Makawao. Aloha, Mr. Chair
and Members of the Committee. Thank you for this opportunity to share my thoughts
with you about this resolution to establish a committee to draft an initiative to change
our Charter to allow for the Council to hire a professional experienced manager to
operate the County organization. I urge you to support the resolution as submitted by
Council Chair White. The change of the amount of days from 180 to 365 will push
this effort past the deadline in July, precluding this effort from getting on the 2016
ballot. If God can create the earth and all living things in six days, surely we can form
a committee and draft an initiative to change government in six months. I am an
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English major, I'm neither an accountant nor a math whiz; however, I was able to find
some rather compelling information in about 60 minutes. I thought well let's look at
counties with similar total budgets and see what that yields, and then let's look at
counties with similar populations and see what their budgets are. I thought well what
state has a similar economy to ours, tourist-based, many retirees, with year-round
warm climate, oh Florida, seemed an obvious choice. So I looked at counties with
those budgets or population characteristics who have county manager structures.
Manatee, Florida comes up. That was the closest to our budget. Theirs is $577
million with an additional $91 million CIP; however, their population is more than
twice ours. Incidentally their administrative salary and wages were $1.9 million which
included the entire budget of the county commissioners and the county manager.
Then I found two counties with similar sized populations who have county manager
forms of government. Charlotte County, 162,000 people with a budget of $643.2
million and administrative salary and benefits of 1. 19 million with 10 staff.
Incidentally Charlotte County operates departments such as health and library done
by the State here. Santa Rosa, Florida, 161,000 people has a total budget of $73
million with administrative salary and wages and fringes at $181,000 for 2 people.
You all know what our budget is and what our administrative salaries and wages are
so I don't need to do a comparison here. Suffice to say that if an English major can
come up with this data in 60 minutes, this special committee with such combined
expertise, meeting twice a month for 6 months, will certainly be able to do it even
better. I understand there are several professional organizations who can offer
expertise to them as we plan for the transition. I urge the Members of this Committee
to pass the resolution that was referred to this Committee by the Council and
recommend its adoption at the next possible Council meeting. The citizens of Maui
have been waiting for this opportunity since 1964 when I was a freshman in high
school. Charter Commission after Charter Commission have recommended this
change. The time is now. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. James [sic], can you conclude? Thank you very much. And thank
you for your enthusiasm and your quick speech. You not being Portuguese, I give you
credit for that.
MR. JANES-BROWN: I try to get it out there.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You did a wonderful job.
MR. JANES-BROWN: I timed it out before.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I missed three points but I got it, I got it. Thank you, Mr. Brown.
Questions for Mr. Brown? Seeing none, thank you, sir, very, very much. I appreciate
it.
MR. JANES-BROWN: Janes-Brown, Janes-Brown.
CHAIR VICTORINO: James-Brown [sic], I'm sorry.
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MR. JANES-BROWN: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I keep forgetting the James [sic] part, I apologize, sir. Okay. Next
testifier, Nelly [sic] Woods, and then followed by Tamara Paltin.
MS. WOODS: Good morning, Chair Victorino and Committee Members. I'm Nell Woods and
I was a member of the West Maui Charter Working Group whose task was to review
the existing Maui County Charter to determine if there were areas that needed
changes or updates. We issued our final report in late 2010, posted it online at
westmauicharter.org, and sent it to the Charter Commission that was formed in 2011.
Our proposal number two was to change the structure of Maui County government to
that of a county manager with a ceremonial Mayor as a non-voting chairman of the
County Council. This concept goes all the way back to the first Charter Commission
in 1964. The third Charter Commission in 1975 also reviewed a similar proposal
which was supported by Mayor Elmer Cravalho, who stated the adoption of the city
manager form of government would ensure high-quality talent for the chief executive
position within the County as well as removing the position from undue political
influence. Mayor Cravalho stands in history as the only Maui County Mayor to
support this change. This concept has been a topic of discussion for more than 50
years now, and it has always been the people of Maui County who continue to push
for better government and who are still waiting for those they have elected to give them
the opportunity to vote on their future. We live in an information age, the materials
needed to intelligently assess if a change is appropriate are readily available. If the
committee recommends a governance structure change, it needs to get on the 2016
ballot so that if passed there is a two-year window to prepare for the transition at the
end of Mayor Alan Arakawa's current term. If it doesn't get on the 2016 ballot, that
delay could cost the taxpayers more than a quarter of a billion dollars in lost efficiency
over the four years. The goal for government services is to be transparent, effective,
efficient, and responsive to the needs of the residents. It is your job to deliver on that
goal regardless of any effect on your personal ambitions. Perception is how each of us
views any given action by an individual or group. Please ask yourselves how requiring
that the committee members appointed must each fit a pigeonhole instead of just
looking for a broad spectrum of education and experience and those who are willing to
serve will be perceived by your constituents. I urge you all to support the creation of
this committee as originally presented in Mike White's resolution. Mahalo for all your
efforts on our behalf, and I hope your legacy is that you were the ones with the vision
to give Maui County voters the opportunity for a better future sooner rather than later.
Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Nell. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
Nell. Tamara Paltin, followed by Dale Bonar.
MS. PALTIN: Aloha, Council Chair or Committee Chair Victorino -CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. PALTIN: --and Councilmembers.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Aloha.
MS. PALTIN: I just.. .my name is Tamara Paltin and I'm testifying on behalf of myself. I am
in support of Councilmember White's resolution and Mr. Hyde's recommendation that
the makeup of the council or the committee be only citizens and not anyone from the
Administration or Council. Because I believe that they will have a chance to weigh in
later and so nine community members would be my preference. The truth is I'm a
pretty much low-level County employee that had a chance to run for office, and that
experience showed me that running a campaign and actually doing the job or planning
to do the job are two completely different things. You can throw the best parties, you
can know the most people, you can be popular, but that doesn't really prepare you for
the job that you're campaigning for. And the requirements to be Mayor have nothing
to do with being the boss of 2,500 employees or administering and implementing a
$500 million budget. And things like dealing with our trash or providing water
shouldn't be political. It's basic necessities that can be done by someone who has the
training and experience to do so. As a County employee through the Apana, Arakawa,
Tavares, Arakawa Administrations, I feel that there was so much waste and so much
back and forth, and so much political vendetta-ism or whatever, you know, that it was
really a disservice to our future generations, when we had the money and the
resources to fix problems, people were just being petty and, you know, political. And
being a parent of young children who will grow up and live here, I think that we need
to do better for them and we need to do better for them now. And I'm not saying this
because I think that the mainland or other models are better, I think that if we study
other models and then fit them to form us, we can do it better for ourselves, not by
copying the mainland. And I realize it's a complex subject but I have faith that we can
do it because we're smart, we have our own university here now. And if we choose
correctly the best possible people, we can have a good outcome. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
Ms. Paltin.
MS. PALTIN: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Next testifier is Dale Bonar, followed by Michael Covich.
MR. BONAR: Aloha, Chair Victorino, Members of the Committee. I'm speaking as an
individual and I strongly support the formation of this committee and the careful
examination of the alternatives for the County, and if appropriate the preparation of a
draft resolution that could be placed in front of the voters next November. I'd like to
speak to a number of comments that have been made either here, in the papers, or in
other commissions that have I think been highly erroneous. The Cost of Government
Commission at its meeting in September had the Administration tell them that there's
no possible way we could afford to do something like this, because they'd have to pay
a county manager $750,000 to do the equivalent. This a report by the International
City/County Managers Association which is the largest organization that's looking at
county manager/city manager types of structures. Extensive research, lots of
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scientific data there. By background I'm a scientist, I look at reports, I look at data.
What they have shown in this report in a nice little table on Page 5, this came out this
year in July, is that for jurisdictions our size, you know, in the 100,000 to 250,000
population range, the average city chief administrative officer makes $208,000. In the
counties, the average makes $167,000. This is not much more than we pay now. And
if you simply look at the amount that gets put into all the various administrative
support positions, we more than have enough in the administrative budget to be able
to do this. So it is not an excessive cost. The comment's been made repeatedly and
interestingly enough I keep hearing from several different people oh, but there's 140
different things we'd have to compare. There aren't, there are two. There's the current
strong Mayor structure, and there is this proposed county manager structure. There's
a lot of little variations inside. The structures themselves have been extensively
studied. The ICMA, NACo which, you know, Councilman Hokama has been president
of, NCL [sic], the National City League.. .League of Cities have all looked at this, and all
of them support the concept of showing how strong management comes when you
have managers who are in place, who are professional, who are not replaced at every
turnover election there, along with most of the rest of the upper management there.
The amount of money that's lost during those types of transitions have been covered
in a number of reports that show that when you replace an employee, a regular level
employee, it's going to cost you 150 percent of their salary in the first year. They've
got to be brought up to speed, trained, made effective. And finally I would say Kauai
County is undergoing the same process as we speak. It's an opportunity for our
committee, our County to be working with Kauai County, talking to experts, bringing
in experts, sharing our resources so that the money spent on this process
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. BONAR: --would be most effective. And as a final note, let me say to Mr. Smith, you
can't have an elected Mayor, it would just change the level of responsibilities that that
Mayor has. Thank you very much.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Questions for Mr. Bonar? Seeing none, thank you very
much. Moving right along. Michael Covich, and he is a concerned American veteran
and he's been a noted veteran participant here in Maui County. And I want to thank
you for all your services, sir.
MR. COVICH: Thank you, Chair. I've been asking around about this particular issue for a
while, and the most advantage I see of having a county manager is to bring fiscal
responsibility of how the money is being spent. I'm clearly in favor of having this on
the ballot in 2016. I don't care whether it's a 7-member committee, a 9-member
committee or a 15-member committee, personally I think a few more than is
necessarily proposed in the beginning is a little bit better 'cause you'll have a little
more input. I do in fact feel that no serving politician should be on this board, too
many potential conflicts of interest. The present County attorney obviously should be
there to sit there to advise people on some of the legal ramifications if this is carried
forward. But overall I think the people are owed the opportunity to have responsible
fiscal management within the government. However, I also believe that we cannot
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negate the power completely of a mayor. We still have to have somebody besides the
person that's in charge of running the County, to go to the State and lobby for what
the State needs because he would be an elected representative of the people. There
should be a way between 7, 9, 11, 15 people to come up with a decent proposal that
will carry this into the future, this County into the future without taking away the
Mayor having, a mayor having influence on what's going on. But the main part of this
issue should be the fiscal responsibility of how we spend $620 million a year which we
all know is going to go up. And although I would, I don't believe I have the educational
experience for this commission, I may have the pragmatism but I don't think I've got a
chance of getting there. My strongest advice on this whole thing is don't kick the can
down the road, put it on the 2016 ballot. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Michael. Questions for the testifier? Michael, thank you
very much. And again, thank you for your continued work with our veterans, we do
appreciate it. Flo Wiger now. Flo.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes? No we're not.. .1 got 22, I got 4 more, I want to finish. So if you
need to run, you can go run, but I really would like to get this done and we're almost
at 10:30 and I got four more after this. So I'd really like to get it done if
.(inaudible). . . If there's no objections?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Go ahead, Flo. Good morning.
MS. WIGER: Good morning, Councilman Victorino. Good morning, Members of the Council.
My name is Flo Wiger. I come to you from Lahaina side, always interesting in the
traffic coming in, in the mornings. I also was a member of the West Maui Working
Charter Commission and then a member of the Charter Commission. And it's so nice
to see many of the people from the Charter Commission here today. We don't get
together very often. We had a great time. And I say that very seriously in that you've
heard a lot of testimony this morning pro and con. The Charter Commission that I
was on I think is a wonderful working model for how this committee could operate. It
was a Charter Commission brought together by the Mayor and the Council,
representative of people all across the County. We had a number of very complex
issues that we had to take on and we took them on, and we did it in a fairly rapid
period of time. And we did that because we were focused, we divided up the tasks, we
brought the information back to committee, and we worked through the process. Did
we have disagreements? You better believe it, we had a lot of disagreements, but we
all learned a lot from each other. And we did something that at the beginning none of
us thought we could do, and that was come up with a fairly large number of
resolutions to go on the ballot. And the majority of those resolutions got passed. And
they got passed because we did our job and we did it well. We put the information
together, we presented it to the members of the community. We went out, had
meetings, took testimony, brought it back, compiled it, and did our task. This
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committee could do that very same thing, and it could do it, it could do it in a
relatively shorter period of time than going 365 days, I really believe that. The other
thing I want to emphasize is I've heard a lot of people say well, if it's not broken, let's
not fix it. You know I just, I don't get that. You go to the doctor every year for a
physical I hope. You bring your car in to have a tune-up or to have it looked at. If
you're on the farm, you make sure that your equipment is working, you don't wait
until the tractor stops in the middle of the field. So to me, the idea of doing something
proactive, it's proactive maintenance. I don't know what the committee is going to
come up with. I don't know that it's going to say this is what you ought to do in terms
of keeping the Mayor or this is what you ought in terms of a county manager, but the
idea of looking at something periodically is terribly important and virtually all
institutions in this country do that. We have evaluation of academic programs. We
have evaluation of businesses. There's no reason why we can't take a look at this and
not be frightened by it, which in some ways is what I think people are at. It's like oh
well, if we do this, everything is going to change. Maybe it will, maybe it won't, but if
we look at it, it can change in a very positive, structured, organized fashion which is
how decisions ought to be made. That's what I got for you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Flo.
MS. WIGER: And I want to thank you for giving me this opportunity of appearing here today.
This is a really, really big deal. The fact that it's been around since 1964 and you
know, I'm a retired educator, a lot of you know that. When I used to teach in the
classroom, I would always tell my students if something keeps coming back up over
and over and over again, maybe that's a clue that we ought to do something.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Flo, can you complete your testimony?
MS. WIGER: That's it. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. And by the way, when you keep repeating the same issue and
finding the same results, they call that insanity. Okay. And I knew that's where you
were leading to so I wanted to cut you off at the pass.
MS. WIGER: Thank you very much.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Flo, you know I've always admired what you do, and I think
the people that have worked with you and others, you know, my whole take and what
I've done, and well talk more about it is really to get some expertise on it, it can be
changed. And in fact well find a version of what we all propose here today between
Mr. White and myself, so well work at it, you know. But I agree with your last
statement that we should periodically look at all aspects of government just like we do
in business.
MS. WIGER: Yes.

- 27 -

POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 2, 2015

CHAIR VICTORINO: And when you fail to do that, that's when you fail to be effective. And
Ill agree with you on that one.
MS. WIGER: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Questions for the testifier? If not, thank you, Flo -MS. WIGER: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --very much for driving through that intrusive road called Honoapiilani
Highway. Isn't that Halloween or something out there? Thank you. All right. Madge
Schaefer and followed by Marjorie Bonar.
MS. SCHAEFER: Good morning. My name is Madge Schaefer. 'Cause of the three-minute
thing which I'm not very good at I'm going to read this, but I'm hoping that you 11 have
some, I can provoke some questions from you so Ill have a little, an opportunity to
expand a little bit. As you know, many of you know, I was an elected official for
12 years in a land over there, and I just thought I'd look at this of how it would look if
there was a county manager with this Council, what would it mean to you all
personally. And so I made a couple of points. Under the present system in order to
talk to staff or a department head, you must get permission of the Mayor's Office.
That's the memo. This would go away under a county manager. It would expedite
problem solving and eliminate stonewalling. Wouldn't that be nice? Under the
current system where the nine-member Council elected at large can adopt a policy and
the Mayor elected by the same electorate can override that policy by ignoring it or not
enforcing, that will end. The frustration Council feels when people like me come here
and blame you for not enforcing a resolution or not addressing a problem when it
really is beyond your control, that will be over. The buck will stop here. County
government policy would be adopted by the Council and carried out by a county
manager, a team effort. I have watched department heads and deputies disrespect
this Council many times, including vicious personal attacks from the speaker's
podium as well as the staff table with no pushback from the Administration. This
would stop. Department heads would serve at the pleasure of the Council and the
county manager. Accepted policy of the county manager would require that all
personnel act respectfully to the electorate's choices. When they disrespect you, they
are disrespecting every person who cast their vote for you. Corporate [sic] Counsel
would look, would work directly for the Council. There would be no need for separate
Council attorneys. The organizational chart would change to electorate at the top, to
the Council, to county manager, to the departments, straight line, with a little
diversion because between the manager and the Council would be the attorney. So
the attorney is yours. Currently a Council of nine is diminished by a Mayor of one. I
keep hearing that this new system would remove the balance of power. How is there
balance when one overrides nine of you?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Madge, can I ask you to conclude, please?
MS. SCHAEFER: Oh, I hate this. I've got...
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CHAIR VICTORINO: I know you hate that but I'm sorry, I've been fair to everybody, I have to
be fair to you.
MS. SCHAEFER: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I'm sorry.
MS. SCHAEFER: Okay. By the way, eight out of the nine Members here received a greater
percentage of the votes cast than the Mayor. The one exception had a heavily financed
campaign opponent and still won. I guess I'm going to have to quit and I hate it.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you, Madge, nice to see you here this morning.
Do you have that in written form that you submitted to us?
MS. SCHAEFER: Oh, I do, but it's not very fancy.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well, just that would help I mean for us to follow up
on.
MS. SCHAEFER: I will be happy...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Could you prepare it in a -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So if you could that'd be
CHAIR VICTORINO: --readable form and then submit it to the Clerk, please -MS. SCHAEFER: Yes. Yes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --Madge?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. SCHAEFER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good. Thank you. That'd be wonderful.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, Madge, thank you so very much.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Other questions for the.. .yes, go ahead, Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. Thank you, Madge, for coming down here and
testifying. In your.. .you mentioned that you served as an official, I believe that was a
mayor, was it not?
MS. SCHAEFER: Mayor and councilmember, and also chair of the board of supervisors and
member of the board of supervisors.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: In your jurisdiction, did you have a mayoral type form of
government or a county manager type government -MS. SCHAEFER: Well it was interesting, in the -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --and what was your perspective of that?
MS. SCHAEFER: --city we had, in my city, the City of Thousand Oaks we had, the mayor
rotated among the councilmembers. They're elected, the council was elected, and a
mayor and a vice-mayor was selected within the council and that rotated every year,
so every councilmember was mayor. The city next door Simi Valley had an elected
mayor, and the only thing different about that was well obviously, he was elected for
his four-year term and he was the permanent chair of the council.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: But there was no... sorry.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Was there a managing. . . (inaudible). . . manager?
MS. SCHAEFER: Oh absolutely, both had -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, okay.
MS. SCHAEFER: --county managers, and interestingly enough those county managers, I
keep hearing this thing about contracts and you're stuck with, interesting, the county
manager in both instances didn't have contracts until the council and the board of
supervisors insisted, because they were so good they were.. .the other counties were
trying to nab our manager. And so we were, we said we want to put you under
contract so that we don't have to worry.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Was the manager selected by the council or the mayor that's
appointed through that?
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MS. SCHAEFER: Actually there's, there are, I don't want to call them employment agencies
but they're executive search agencies, they would... that do nothing but government
officials, and they would screen down, give us a pool. A citizen's committee would do
the reviewing. The county manager had the final, picked the final three and then they
were interviewed by the council and the council made the decision. So it was very, it
was -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
MS. SCHAEFER: --very hands on.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any others? Anything else, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, nothing. That's very interesting. It's like a hybrid type.
Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. There's many forms -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --out there, you know, so.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: There's different forms. Yeah, it's very interesting to hear
about -CHAIR VICTORINO: There's nothing that's in -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --different forms.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --stone right now -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --so, you know.
MS. SCHAEFER: Well, you know -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
MS. SCHAEFER: --and one other thing if somebody would just ask me about what is...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Wait, wait, wait, no, no. Madge, I gotta stop you here. Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You wanted to ask your question so you got a chance, here you go.
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VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. In your testimony you didn't talk about there are two
resolutions here, whether you support either or both of those.
MS. SCHAEFER: Well I, actually I support Chairman White's. I think it's straightforward. I
think when you give somebody 365 days, that is a long time, that is a long, long time,
and I think this committee... someone said was planning to meet twice a month. I
would think this committee would meet very often and in subcommittees of itself very
often so the process would get, really get going.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Any other questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much, Madge. Appreciate it.
MS. SCHAEFER: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Next testifier is Marjorie Bonar. And I think we have two more after
. Go ahead, Marjorie.
that, three more after that. Oh my
MS. BONAR: Okay. Aloha, Chair and Councilmembers.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning.
MS. BONAR: I have.. .Marjorie Bonar, not Margie all the time, I'm here as an individual, I live
Upcountry, and I have already put a lot of thought and a lot of effort into this.
Because it's not so much that we just have a broken system, it's just that there seems
to be better ways out there. And it's not any personality. I'm seeing problems from
people I know within departments and such that just don't get addressed properly,
because the structure is one that makes it hard, it hamstrings everybody. It
hamstrings the Council and it hamstrings the Mayor and it does all the staff. It's also
a very depressing thing to staff to know that no matter how good they are, they're
never going to be the top of the heap, because they're not in a place to be a political
appointee. But I have digressed, and all of my thunder for everything I planned on
saying has been said and quite often said better than I was going to say it. One thing
that has become obvious is the timeframe is to me way extended. I even find 180 days
to be too far out. I think that a committee that's dedicated citizens that have the time,
not a committee made up of people who may not have the time, that kind of delays
things just because they can't be available and not through anybody's intention is
something to be very careful of. Because there needs to be community input, because
there obviously are all these permutations, I think that to me 90 days, maybe 120
days would be enough time to get something back to the Council in a format that's
ready to go out to the citizenship of the community as a whole. Because they're going
to be looking at all of those little issues. Can we have an elected mayor with different
kinds of duties? Can we prescribe the qualifications needed for places? We know that
the general time for turnover will be absolutely ample, because it takes someplace
between 7 and 12 months to make that adjustment between a mayoral and a county
manager form of government. It's happened other places over and over again. There's
also been some question and I do want to address this, missing other things, is that
-
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we don't really have a check and balance now and we don't have a need for that same
kind of tn-part. We are not making treaties, we are not raising arms. This is a
County, we have basic services to address so our primary thing has to be in
addressing who is making sure we get our water, who is making sure that the streets
get repaired. This is a different animal and -CHAIR VICTORINO: Marjorie...
MS. BONAR: --I just want to see it done quickly. Aloha.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you very much. Questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much. Next to testify is Anthony Edington, and followed by
Rosemary Robbins.
MR. EDINOTON: Thank you for letting me address you. I'm just speaking as a citizen
involved and concerned about our County. Literally I've only been thinking about this
for five weeks and it came up at a party, someone was discussing having a change in
the way that we run. I was against it when I first started talking about it. I'm here
actually now in favor of it. And a lot of that has to do with the implementation of the
public will, you know, what the people want and do we actually get that. And the
public confidence in our government, you know, from the Federal level down to the
State and to the County is not high. I mean it's reflected in our voter turnout. You
know people here have won the majority of the people who voted, but they haven't won
a majority of the people in the County. And why is that? I don't know but it's a
serious question. The funds that we have in the County are approved by the Council.
That's often ignored by the Mayor. There are things that have been approved that are
not done, funds that have been allocated that are not disbursed. Is that effective
government? I don't think so. That's what we see, that's what I see. The duplication
of effort we've been talking about with this Council having had another study by
another gentleman and that group, it's common. I mean that's not a surprise. I don't
think anybody here is surprised that that occurs. Why is that happening? I mean
can't we get this in a more organized fashion? And I kind of like the fact that we're
sitting here talking about it without having made a decision. And I'm assuming that a
decision hasn't been made. And the comments about increasing our amount of time
from 180 days to 365 I think is valid. In some instances people who are inside the
game know that you can run the clock, you know, in the military, they call it the slow
walk. Is that what we're trying to do here? Or do we really want a decision? There
are very few people who have expertise in running hundreds of million dollar
businesses. There is an established governmental studies program, these are the
people who are learning how to do that. It's not their money, it's our money so they
should be reflecting our views, and how do we get those views expressed is through
this Council and possibly through the county manager. The Mayor is a separate
position, we express our vote there, but I don't know any mayor in any county who
has the expertise to run a coalition of politics, the expertise to run $100 million
corporation, the personnel expertise to hire a qualified person. They rely on the
coalitions, they rely on people and patronage, and that's not what we're talking about
here. I think we're trying to find an effective way to serve the people and to serve the
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County. We're in a position now where things are getting dire, global climate change
is coming. You know the people who are running for office don't always care, so
please, you know, help us out and serve us as we try to serve you. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Edington, I appreciate it. Mr. Couch? Hang on.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Edington, for your comments.
I just would like some clarification, you were talking about it sounded like you said
you supported the longer period of time and then spoke against it. So are you...
MR. EDINGTON: No, I am in favor of the 180 days at this point.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Hundred and eighty?
MR. EDINGTON: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Edington. Any other questions for him? No. Thank
you. Rosemary Robbins, followed by Dick Mayer. And Dick Mayer is our last testifier
to sign up. If there's anyone interested in testifying, please go to the table in the lobby
and sign up. Good morning, Rosemary.
MS. ROBBINS: Good morning, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, everybody. Rosemary
Robbins, concerned citizen. I came down at the beginning of last week, went through
the binder of the materials on this topic this morning, came down again on Friday and
that binder had had a number of additional inclusions in there. So we've had people
out in the community who have indeed submitted paperwork for this so that's
encouraging. And this morning when I was listening to all of the folks who, everybody
of goodwill, I'm convinced, testified, we had more than twice as many people who
testified in favor of looking into a change than in view of don't do this right here, right
now. And last week the Mayor was here for all of us to listen to and he was dealing
with a topic. And several times he said this is not new. And so we're dealing with the
same thing, I heard all these dates this morning, way back when people were dealing,
should we be dealing with a different style of government. So one more time, this is
not new. And I wasn't here in '64 so I can't deal with that, but I've been here since '82
and have seen lots of changes and lots of things that I think there's still room for
changing. One thing is when we look at all of those Ws when we're going to take any
action, the hmm, hmm, hmm, hmm, hmm and then the how are we going to do that.
The first one of those Ws we so often hear a person's name and that person like the
rest of us could be dead tomorrow, so when we're going to be taking actions we need to
do that in my opinion with why. Why would we take a change, why would we
continue, and there were people here this morning that had a foot in both of those
worlds, especially about the timing issue on there. I think there's merit to that, not as
to whether or not we should look into a change in approach. And when we read that
resolution as it was in, it talks about looking at different types of, this is not an
either/or. And I remember testimony having been given here before within the past
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month about we don't want to throw out the baby with the bathwater. So excluding
people right away I think is not a good idea. We also don't want people drowning in
the fluid surrounding that baby in there. If we need to clean up some of those
surrounding issues, we need to do it now. Okay. So it talks in here in this resolution
about eliminating duplication, overlapping of services. I'd like to think everybody
would agree with that. It talks about planning, coordinating, consensus building, and
decision making. Certainly our County Auditor who was a long time in being a County
Auditor, we didn't have one for all those other years, found those to be in room for
improvement too. Okay. So when we talk about...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Rosemary, can we -MS. ROBBINS: Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --conclude, please?
MS. ROBBINS: Uh-huh. So when we talk about the commission wanting to go after
something that's not new, it's a need. And so I'm encouraging everybody to make sure
that you follow this carefully. Very seldom is this room ever full. Anybody can come
and listen and speak, please do.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Rosemary. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you very much, Rosemary.
MS. ROBBINS: You're welcome.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And our last testifier who has signed up is Mr. Dick Mayer. Dick, will
you come up please? And I will.. .unless there's someone that's going to rush up to the
podium I'm going to check with the District Offices and close public testimony.
Mr. Mayer, good morning.
MR. MAYER: Good morning, Mr. Victorino. Thank you very much for letting me speak. My
name is Dick Mayer. I have served at various times on seven different County boards
or commissions, committees of various kinds over the years and so I come to you
hoping that we can continue operating very effectively. And I'm pleased to see that the
resolution that Mr. Victorino and Mr. White have put forth have certain common
language, one of which is some quoting from the Countywide Policy Plan which you all
adopted which talks about efficient government, et cetera, and effective government.
The last Charter Review Commission which recommended strongly that a taskforce be
set up and I'm hoping that today you will pass a resolution setting up a body that will
look at the Charter that we have and see if amendments should be made to go along
the line of a county manager position. I have two suggestions, two general suggestions
that I would like you to change, and I'd like you to take out if you can the green sheet
of paper which I passed out earlier. I'm very strongly in favor of having a date rather
than just a number of days. This resolution may go through your Committee, it may
then go back to Council, you may start appointing people, et cetera. My experience
having worked on several boards and commission is that the best way to get things
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done is to have a date final. And so I'm suggesting May 16th, it's a Monday that the
committee make its report back to the Council. I don't think this should go on for
another year, it's gonna just put it off as an item that will affect the County really for
another four or five years if we do that. By putting it on May 16th, that will be
approximately the time when the Council has finished up its budget process and you
will be able to focus on this very important issue among all the other issues that
you've delayed at that time. You will have then three months till early August to put
something on the ballot if you so see fit, if the committee recommends that to you.
And so I strongly urge you to make the substitutions I've put there. And the first thing
for a term of 365, delete that, and substitute in the second paragraph the phrase just
by May 16, 2016. And I'm urging you also to add number three, that thereafter the
special committee will remain constituted only until the Council proposes a County
governance Charter amendment to be placed on the 2016 general election ballot or
until September 30th, whichever comes first. And the reason for that is that after they
submit their report let's say May 16th, you may want to refer back to them, certain
questions that you have on various things, so they can do further research, they can
give you advice, et cetera. And I found from my experience with the citizen advisory
committee that I was on for the Upcountry Community Plan and the GPAC that this is
a very important thing that can help the Council make its final decision. So allow
them to stay in business so to speak until you folks have made your final decisions
and to end it permanently well before the election itself. The other area that came up
today and I... and several people made comments on is the constituency of the
committee itself. And several people said it should not include Councilmembers or
members of the Administration. I'm going to offer, this is something at least for
thought today and that is with regard to the members down at the bottom of that page
where you have the three Councilmembers -MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. MAYER: --that you consider and I'll just quickly finish up.
CHAIR VICTORINO: If you can finish, Mr. Mayer, please.
MR. MAYER: I will finish with one thing.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, sir.
MR. MAYER: That you consider three people instead of the Councilmembers and they be one
community member from Molokai, one from Lanai, and somebody from the island of
Maui who... and hopefully somebody who's been serving on community associations in
those communities, who can, has been listening to and hearing from their community
for a period of time, substituting that for the three Councilmembers. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Mayer. Questions for Mr. Mayer? Thank you. And
thank you for your suggestions. You know I personally like some of em, you know.
And again and, you know, Fli clear this up right now so that everybody knows, when I
put Councilmembers there it was at that time where it might be more of a TIG type of
-36-

POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 2, 2015

committee where Councilmembers will be involved. So that's one of those that I could
make a change or request to change in no time flat, you know.
MR. MAYER: Yeah, you will have the three months after...
CHAIR VICTORINO: 'Cause I can tell you right now one of my suggestions would have been
that the Chair of the Council, the Vice-Chair of the Council, and the Pro Tern cannot
serve. They are leadership already, they could not serve, so that would be one of my
suggestions I was going to bring up later. But anyhow, well talk about it a little bit
more as we go into the whole thing.
MR. MAYER: And that's why I said the three months after May 16th till the final -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MAYER: --youll, Council will have great chance to -CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MAYER: --look at those.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Mayer. Any other questions? Seeing none, thank you.
Real quickly, I see no one has signed up or rushing down to the podium, so let me
check with the District Offices. Hana, do you have anyone wishing to testify?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Chair?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Hana is closed?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Hana apologizes -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. WILLENBRINK: --but she had to leave.
CHAIR VICTORINO: She had to close the office. Okay. Thank you. Lanai, is there anyone
wishing to testify?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify at the Lanai Office.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Denise. Molokai, is there anyone wishing to testify?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And so seeing no more testifiers coming to the podium,
with no objections, I will close public testimony for this morning's agenda item.
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COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
• .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And I had promised you guys a break so I'm going to give
you an extra-long break. I'm going to give you till 11:15. And I know some of you,
we've received testimony and there's.. .oh by the way, I would also like with your
permission to include all written and c-mailed testimony that we received, with no
objections.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you very much. And so at this time, I'm going to give everyone
till 11:15. Try to be back by 11:15. That's 25 minutes. And if you want to, you'll have
these different reports that were submitted and take some time to review them 'cause
we will be discussing them. This meeting is now in recess. . . .(gavel).
RECESS: 10:51 a.m.
RECONVENE: 11:17 a.m.
CHAIR VICTORINO: . . . (gavel). . . The meeting of the Policy and Intergovernmental Affairs
Committee will reconvene. First of all I'd like to say thank you to the public for all of
your mariao, your testimony. We had a wide range of testimony and I want to thank
all of you for your thoughts and your assistance in helping us today.

ITEM PIA-54: COUNTY MANAGER FORM OF GOVERNANCE (CC 15247)
CHAIR VICTORINO: Members, my agenda for today is to go to 12 o'clock and well have a
basic discussion about the two proposals, and they are templates, they are just
resolution proposals so we can take either/or, or change and make a completely
different one if you feel like or amend the two proposals that are on the table, the two
resolutions. That's your call. Remember, this is your document. This is what you
want for the people of Maui County. Not mine, no offense to you, Mr. White, not
Mr. White's but for the people of Maui County. And, you know, I think you and I agree
with that one. We may have little differences but we also come to the same
conclusion, this is for the people. So at 12 o'clock, well take our lunch break,
reconvene at 1:30. At that point Mr. Kailiponi and others have told me they'll be back
to help us, so well be able to use them as resource people. So I want to thank them
for their assistance in this matter. So with no further ado, I would like to call upon
Mr. White, because I want Mr. White to have an opportunity.. .well, let me ask you this
question. Would you like Kim to read both resolutions in entirety so people know
what we're talking about? Or do you feel comfortable... 'cause I know the public out
there, many of them may not. I know it's online, Mr. White, but I still had people even
as of yesterday at church asking me what this is all about and I say, I, did you go
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online to read it? One lady told me I don't have Internet yet, I don't do that kind of
stuff. Whoa, I was like...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chairman, that's up to you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You know I, if you don't mind, I would really like to have both
documents read so that people see there are some differences but many similarities,
with no objections?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Ms. Willenbrink, would you read Mr. White's resolution first and
then read my resolution secondly so that the general public has a good idea on what
these resolutions mean. Please, if you don't mind.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Thank you, Chair. The resolution is entitled ESTABLISHING A
SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON COUNTY GOVERNANCE. WHEREAS, the residents of Maui
County expect their elected officials to strive to operate the County government at the
highest level of efficiency and professionalism, and as stated in the Preamble to the
County's governing document, the Revised Charter of the County of Maui (1983), as
amended, the people of the County of Maui wish to "secure the benefits of the best
possible form of county government"; and WHEREAS, Charter Section 3-9 states: It is
declared to be the policy of the county to promote economy, efficiency, and improved
service in the transaction of the public business in the legislative and executive
branches of the county by: 1. Limiting expenditures to the lowest amount consistent
with its [sic] efficient performance of essential services, activities, and functions. 2.
Eliminating duplication and overlapping of services, activities, and functions. 3.
Consolidating services, activities, and functions of a similar nature. And 4. Abolishing
services, activities, and functions not necessary to the efficient conduct of government;
and WHEREAS, the Maui County General Plan emphasizes the importance of striving
for good governance; and WHEREAS, the Countywide Policy Plan, at page 78,
establishes the goal for government services to be "transparent, effective, efficient, and
responsive to the needs of the residents," with the objective to "strengthen
governmental planning, coordination, consensus building, and decision making"; and
WHEREAS, an implementing action associated with the good governance goals in the
Countywide Policy Plan is to "evaluate and, if necessary, recommend modifications to
the County Charter that could result in a possible change to the form of governance
for Maui County"; and WHEREAS, the "2011-2012 Maui County Charter Commission
Revised Final Report to the County Clerk (June 25, 2012)," at page 39, stated: "The
Commission recommends that a task force be established to thoroughly review the
structure of the County of Maui government, research other models of county
governments and prepare a report"; and WHEREAS, as used in this resolution,
"county manager form of government" refers to any form of governance in which a
-
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professional manager is appointed to oversee a municipality's administrative
operations and implement policies established by the municipality's elected legislative
body (including forms of governance sometimes known as council-manager and city
manager); and WHEREAS, since 1969, Maui County has had a council-mayor form of
government; and WHEREAS, according to the Summer 2013 edition of the Harvard
Law & Policy Review, the most common form of municipal government in the United
States is the county manager form of government; and WHEREAS, in a county
manager form of government the county manager usually has extensive professional
expertise and a relevant advanced degree, such as a Master's of Public Administration
or a Master's of Business Administration; and WHEREAS, a June 2015 research
report by the National Association of Counties, entitled "An Overview of County
Administration," concluded a county manager form of government can promote
efficiency, "ensure counties provide quality services to their residents," and "keep
counties resilient in the face of unexpected changes"; and WHEREAS, changing from a
county-mayor [sic] form of government to a county manager form of government would
require an amendment to the Charter; and WHEREAS, Charter Section 14-1(1)
provides that Charter amendments may be initiated by resolution of the Council
adopted after two readings and passed by a vote of six or more Councilmembers; and
WHEREAS, the Council from time to time has established special committees to
provide guidance on specific policy issues; and WHEREAS, the Council would benefit
from the guidance of a such a special committee, in the nature of a blue ribbon
commission composed of esteemed community leaders, on the questions of: (a)
whether the Council should initiate a Charter amendment to establish a county
manager form of government; and (b) if so, how the Charter amendment should be
structured; now, therefore, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the County of Maui:
That the Special Committee on County Governance ("Special Committee") is
established from the date of this resolution's adoption for a term of 180 days; That the
objective of the Special Committee is to consider and make written recommendations
to the Council on whether the Charter should be amended to establish a county
manager form of government and, if so, how the form should be structured; That, for
procedural and logistical purposes, the Special Committee shall generally function as
if it were a standing committee of the Council and subject to the Rules of the Council;
That the Special Committee... 4. That the Special Committee should be made available
for use by the Special... .no, that the Council Chamber should be made available for
use by the Special Committee; 5. That the Council Chair shall select the membership
of the Special Committee, and in selecting the membership the Council Chair shall
give due consideration to geographic and other forms of diversity existing among Maui
County's residents and appoint voting members as indicated in Section 6 below; 6.
That the Special Committee shall be composed of nine voting members who are Maui
County residents, such as the following: (a) current or former elected officials at the
County, State, or Federal level; (b) current or former officers of the County of Maui,
including former members of the Charter Commission; or (c) members of the public
with special expertise, interest, or experience in municipal governance, public
administration, or business administration; and 7. That certified copies of this
resolution be transmitted to the Mayor, the Council Chair, the Corporation Counsel,
the County Clerk, and the Director of Council Services.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you very much, Ms. Willenbrink. Now for mine, I think the
whereases are all, if I'm not mistaken are identical to Mr. White's?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, they're not. Okay, well then you gotta read 'em then. 'Cause I
thought I, we had pretty much stayed along the same lines, but if you would read -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Pretty much.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --the second resolution, please.
MS. WILLENBRINK: The resolution passed out by Council... Committee Chair Victorino is
also entitled ESTABLISHING A SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON COUNTY GOVERNANCE.
WHEREAS, the residents of Maui County expect their elected officials to strive to
operate the County government at the highest level of efficiency and professionalism,
and as stated in the Preamble to the County's governing document, the Revised
Charter of the County of Maui (1983), as amended ("Charter"), the people of the
County of Maui wish to "secure the benefits of the best possible form of county
government"; and WHEREAS, Charter Section 3-9 states:--and this is the same
whereas--It is declared to be the policy of the county to promote economy, efficiency,
and improved service in the transaction of the public business in the legislative and
executive branches of the county by: 1. Limiting expenditures to the lowest amount
consistent with the efficient performance of essential services, activities, and
functions. 2. Eliminating duplication and overlapping of services, activities, and
functions. 3. Consolidating services, activities, and functions of a similar nature. 4.
Abolishing services, activities, and functions not necessary to the efficient conduct of
government; WHEREAS, the Maui County General Plan emphasizes the importance of
striving for good governance; and WHEREAS, the Countywide Policy Plan, at page 78,
establishes the goal for government services to be "transparent, effective, efficient, and
responsive to the needs of residents," with the objective to "strengthen government
[sic] planning, coordination, consensus building, and decision making"; and
WHEREAS, the [sic] implementing action associated with the good governance goals in
the Countywide Policy Plan is to "evaluate and, if necessary, recommend modifications
to the County Charter that could result in a possible change to the form of governance
for Maui County"; and, WHEREAS, the "2011-2012 Maui County Charter Commission
Revised Final Report to the County Clerk (June 25, 2012)," at page 39, stated: "The
Commission recommends that a task force be established to thoroughly review the
structure of the County of Maui government, research other models of county
governments and prepare a report"; and WHEREAS, as used in this resolution,
"county manager form of government" refers to any form of governance in which a
professional manager is appointed to oversee a municipality's administrative
operations and implement policies established by the municipality's elected legislative
body (including forms of governance sometimes known as council-manager and city
manager); and WHEREAS, since 1969, Maui County has had a council-mayor form of
government, and no Charter Commission has since proposed a county manager form
of government; and WHEREAS, changing from a council-mayor form of government to
-
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a county manager form of government would require amendments to the Charter; and
WHEREAS, Charter Section 14-1(1) provides that Charter amendments may be
initiated by resolution of the Council adopted after two readings and passed by a vote
of six or more Councilmembers; and WHEREAS, the Council would benefit from the
guidance of such a committee, in the nature of a blue-ribbon commission composed of
esteemed community leaders, on the questions of: (a) whether the Council should
initiate a Charter amendment to establish a county manager form of government; and
(b) if so, how the Charter amendment should be structured; now, therefore--much of
that was the same--BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the County of Maui: 1. That
the Special Committee on County Governance is established from the date of this
resolution's adoption for a term of 365 days; 2. That the objectives of the Special
Committee are to: (a) consider whether establishing the county manager form of
government for Maui County would significantly improve management and operation
of County government; and (b) make written recommendations to the Council on
whether the Charter should be amended to establish a county manager form of
government, and if so, how the form should be structured; 3. That, for procedural and
logistical purposes, but not for membership or other purposes, the Special Committee
shall generally function as if it were a standing committee of the Council and subject
to the Rules of the Council; 4. That the Special Committee shall regularly meet in the
Council Chamber and, when feasible, at other public locations on Lanai, Maui, and
Molokai; 5. That the Special Committee shall be composed of 11 voting members who
a)
are Maui County residents, with membership seats allotted as follows:
c) Councilmember
; d) Business
Councilmember
; b) Councilmember
executive _____; e) Business executive _____; f) Hospitality business executive
; g)
; i)
Hospitality business executive _____; h) Nonprofit organization executive
community member with considerable professional experience with the Maui County
; j) Community member with considerable experience working for or
government
with trade unions _____; and k) Community member with considerable knowledge of
County governance history ____; 6. That the Special Committee shall retain a
facilitator to organize, manage, and facilitate Committee functions; 7. That certified
copies of this resolution be transmitted to the Mayor, the County [sic] Chair, the
Corporation Counsel, the County Clerk, and the Director of Council Services.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Willenbrink. I could not have done better. Great job.
That's a lot. Now I have a special appreciation for not only our Staff but our Clerks
when they read these resolutions. I can see how much it entails. So with that, now
that we've read both and hopefully most people understand the differences, and there
were a lot of similarities, there's just a few systemic differences. I would like to give
Mr. White, Council Chair White an opportunity to go over his proposal, and if time
allows, I will do mine, if not, then when we come back from lunch. So, Chair White, I
give you the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. And to make this simple, I think as some of
the testifiers pointed out, the differences in the two resolutions are not significant.
There, I mean there are obviously items that well want to discuss in more detail such
as --
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --the timing and the listing of members. But I think I'm
comfortable moving forward using your resolution as the template because I think it,
as was pointed out, it's very similar. And I think, you know, it was said today by a
couple of testifiers that this committee must end up with a recommendation of a
Charter amendment. And my intent and from the reading of yours, I think your intent
is that we want a committee that is going to do a very thoughtful, broad, and thorough
review of what the options are as far as the various models out there. Whether we
have a mayor that is a, you know, ceremonial mayor and a county manager or
whether we stick with a mayor form, my interest is just simply to have a thorough and
exhaustive review of what the options are. I don't think it's appropriate for us to
simply sit here and say you must come up with a Charter amendment, because that
assumes that the county manager form is better for Maui than the other and we're
making that assumption now instead of later. So I'm comfortable moving ahead with
just forming the discussion around your resolution. So I think both you and I agree
that the intent is to evaluate and determine whether an amendment to the Charter is
appropriate. And I think that's the question that should be left to the committee and
not make as a determination by adjusting the resolution at this time. So I appreciate
what you've brought forward. I take seriously some of the comments made by
testifiers that they feel that it should be a citizen committee and should not include
the, any number of Councilmembers. I think that's something that's worth
discussing. And so with that, I, you know, I'm comfortable moving ahead with
discussion based on your resolution.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well I thank you, Mr. White. And again, yours and mine went along
very similar lines and I maybe have been more specific. But again as I mentioned
earlier, this is our document that we would like to make sure we send out to get it
done in a very precise but a timeframe where good, solid discussion is done by all.
'Cause I don't want the veterans, I don't want the citizenry, I don't want our seniors, I
don't want any one segment to feel like they were not listened to and that... because it
impacts everyone. It's not just me, it's not just us, it's everyone. And do we need to
look at it? I agree with you 100 percent, it's time, and we should do it on a regular
basis. Maybe get the Charter Commission to do it more often. Maybe have something
special, I don't know. I don't want to even go any further than that, and I would
rather not be pontificating from here and give my Members an opportunity to say what
they would like to say. So I recognize Mr. Carroll from East Maui. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I think we're on the right track over here
and I don't have much problems with, I don't really have any problems with what has
been presented from Mr. White or any other changes except for one, and that is
number five. The committee, the people assigned to the committee, the 11. I believe
that we should leave that more open. By going over and specifying Councilmembers,
business executives, hospitality, I think it can be perceived that we're looking at these
groups to come up with something that would be to their benefit, because they are
going to look at something that will be to their benefit. It's natural, that is what they
do. That is not what we want. The general public, we have a lot of people out there
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that are more than qualified. They can bring the people we have over here, they can
bring the Councilmembers before us, they could bring Mr. White, they could bring you
to give testimony. They can pick just about anybody. We have really, really, really
qualified people. You said you want to make sure that everybody can be able to
participate. I would like to see that one section changed to Molokai 1, Lanai 1, the
Maui districts, there's 7 Maui districts, 1 from each district, 2 at large, that's a total of
11. And then when we pick the committee, we have the ability to go over there and
look and trying to get from the districts covering all the geographic locations and put
together a committee that these people can go back and meet in their own districts
also and get the input that's necessary. If we do it this way, we can truly say that eh,
we went outside there and we did our very best to make sure all the people of Maui
County have a chance to participate. I would hope that and I don't know if you
want.. .we don't even have anything on the floor so I can't make a motion, but I would
hope that Members would consider what I have proposed, I think All work better. I
really don't think we want Councilmembers, business executives, and hospitality
executives being the head of this committee, being run, running this committee. I
think it's definitely getting on from the wrong foot. We need to get community
members that are well informed, knowledgeable, that can bring these people over there
when they have questions and they can go from there. And for the Council, this
Council, we have the last word. Well have our chance. It's not really that important
for us to be on this committee, it is not necessary. Well have our chance. If these
committee members want information from us, they can ask it directly and we can
give it to them. Also they can do the same thing with the Administration. So I think
well have a nice level playing field over here. Well get people really concerned to do
the right thing. And I will say if we're going to pass this out, it better be the right thing
because it's almost certain it would pass. As some of our testifiers said, people are
really tired of the political system. If for nothing else they want to see change, so if
we're going to offer them change, we really better make sure that it's the right change.
So I would hope we would consider what I have proposed. Ill say it again, Molokai
one, Lanai one, Maui has seven other districts, and then two at large.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. -COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --Carroll. And again, I have no prejudgment as far as what I put out
there again was for the expertise necessary in some of these areas. So I'd have no
problem so long as those would be inclusive, that those areas would have opportunity
for some of these people to serve there. 'Cause it's very important, we're talking a
systemic final change in how we govern and its business, it's all predicated around the
business aspect so I wanted that to be a part of it. So I have no qualms in your
suggestions, and again, well go through this right now and then this afternoon when
we come back, we can really get down and dirty and find some of the real changes that
we want to introduce in this. So I have no problems. Again, I appreciate what you're
saying, we can move along. Again like Mr. White said and mine, we had certain
criteria we're putting in only because we wanted some expertise in that area. Not to
say there's not community members who have expertise but some of the expertise
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that's necessitated in the business environment.
clarify.. .you're clear with that, Mr. Carroll.

So just so that you are

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I'd like to thank you, Chair. And I would also like to bring to
our attention that we do have, and the Administration, we have a lot of people over
there that are very qualified, Housing and Human Services and all the committees,
they'll be able to assist this committee -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --in any way that would be necessary.
CHAIR VICTORINO: It's gotta be broad range, broad, it's gotta be broad in its nature, yeah.
Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. This is a very, very important
thing that we're discussing today, and I think that it, you know, really deserves a lot of
thought. Because we are essentially hearing people talk about restructuring
government and that's a big deal. Maui County is over 100 years old and what we
have in spite of the fact that it has issues, it has worked. We do live in the best
County in the entire country and we are fiscally in good shape, and I think we do an
excellent job. We didn't get to be the best island in the world by accident. So I don't
want to, you know, be very, very negative about this. I do want to say that I am
always open to evaluation. I think evaluation is essential. If you want to do better or
you want to look at your strengths and weaknesses, it's very good as you go forward,
and so therefore I think the look is good. I don't... I want to say that I think it's really
great that we're starting this discussion off today with this feeling of cooperation, and I
want to thank Chair White for, you know, quickly stating we can go with Chair, with
the Chair's recommendation and let's try to tweak and work on that. I think that
bodes well for where we're trying to go with this thing, we need to cooperate to get this
done. I do have concerns about both proposals. I, it's interesting as I'm listening to
Member White. My first reaction when I saw your proposal with the three
Councilmembers was I didn't want to see us to be a part of this committee. You know
I had a long, long couple of discussions this week, yesterday, one for almost an hour,
and what I kept hearing was we want to remove politics. I'm very sorry, folks, but I
think I'm the oldest person on this floor and you are not going to remove politics from
government, okay. Let's get real, it just isn't going to happen. It'll be in a different
form and All be exercised in different ways but politics is just that, it's in the home,
it's here, it's in school, it's in the Little League, it's everywhere. Politics is just a fact of
life. It will shift the power structure as to what kind of politics and where the power
goes, but it is not going to remove politics. I can tell you that I feel really good on
working on this, because it was alleged this morning that some of us might be acting
from political ambition. I'm very glad to say I have no political ambition. The only
thing I'm running for is the border at the end of next year so that maybe I can have
some time off. But I am a third-generation Mauian. My family came here in 1878.
We are very vested in our community. We spend a lot of time and service in our
community, and I want Maui to be the best that it can be. This Halloween I was very
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privileged to open Facebook and see three of my great grandchildren and I'm very
concerned about what Maui is going to be like for them. I'm worried they're not going
to be able to live here. So obviously we can do better even though we're doing okay.
So let's take a look. I agree that I would like to see this committee and I don't care
whether it's 9 or 11, I think 9 is functional. We manage the Council with nine. I'd like
to see district representation, I think it's very important. I'd like to see that at least
one seat is given to Molokai, one to Lanai. And if we're going to replace three
Councilmembers, maybe we replace those with three people from the Maui, Molokai,
Lanai community associations where we have people that are very involved in
community and know what's going on and maybe can represent groups and go back
and facilitate meetings with them. I would like to see all of us have the opportunity
and it's possible if we say nine Councilmembers, each Councilmember appoint one
person and let's see what we come up with, if we've got a good, broad.. .we need to
have some qualifications for who these people should be. I think they should have
been here a while. They need to have experience. I'd like to see community experience
and also community involvement. You know if you haven't paid any attention to what
is going on, I think you're going to have a really hard time trying to suggest change.
The other thing I want to see is a very close relationship with the Cost of Government
Commission. We chartered them and said go do this. We sent them a letter and said
please work on this idea, and because we did that and they're doing it, I think it would
be insulting not to give them a key role and to coordinate our meetings with them. We
are only at the first step here and I have a whole bunch of colleagues that I know that
have similar thoughts, so Ill be quiet for now. But I am not opposed to the idea but I
want to talk about it a lot more. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And again, there's many more opportunities this afternoon
to speak on it. So going right down the line, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And yeah, I'm very happy to see this here
today for us to discuss and the reason why I was willing to give up my afternoon
meeting for us to pursue this further. And I agree with the makeup of the... 9 or 11 for
me, either way, whichever this body wants to go with, but the 9 districts being
definitely represented there . . . (audio goes out). . . just keep talking?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, you're back. You're back on.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And that 180 or 365 days thing too, I personally
would like to see, have every faith that this committee can get their work done in a
very efficient and thorough manner and get it on this upcoming ballot. Personally
that's my initial thought, and would like to see that happen. Also, definitely
incorporate the Cost of Government's hard work they've been put into this already.
But wondering where the work of our County Auditor fits in also with this, 'cause they
are charged with looking at efficiencies, you know, of our existing government and
departments and what have you. So I think and I heard Cost of Government does
dialogue with our Auditor, but for sure somehow have their presence and participation
in this. But I know this is just the beginning of our discussion and I'm looking
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forward to further. So I'll just keep it at that, but, Chair, appreciate your resolution
and looking forward to working further on it. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And thank you. And again, I want to thank you for allowing this
afternoon. I mean that was very important because I knew we weren't going to get this
done this morning -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --to be really thorough. And secondly, again, this is not my document
or Mr. White's document, it's going to be our document transformed into what I really
hope this taskforce, commission, whatever you want to call it will come back. I just
want a thorough review. I want... I really don't care about a timeframe. If they could
do it in two weeks I'd be happy, but I would like to make sure it's done and vented out
thoroughly that all the communities have a chance to review it before it gets on the
ballot, because this is a major change in our governance. And some people may say I
have a selfish motive, I can look everyone in the eye, especially those who came to see
me and I say my only selfish motive is for the people of Maui County to have the best
form of government. And if you don't believe me, meet me at church, I'll take a
confessional and show you right there and then. I really got religious on that one.
Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: How do you follow that?
CHAIR VICTORINO: I didn't want you to follow it. Sorry. Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And as my colleagues have already mentioned,
this is very good that we're bringing it up and it's something that needs to be
discussed. I liked.., a lot of the testimony was all very heartfelt and very good. One of
the testifiers said, put it succinctly in that, you know what, you go to the doctor once a
year, maybe -CHAIR VICTORINO: Maybe.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --or take your car in to get maintenance, but take a look at something
that may not be broken but, you know, let's see if we're still on the right course. It's
been mentioned by a lot of the testifiers that this has been discussed in several
different commissions before. I have the minutes of the original Charter Commission
and it was definitely discussed and definitely pointed towards the mayor, the system
we have now, but that doesn't mean it's not the right for us at this point. I too would
like to see if we can get it on the next ballot, 2016, but you know what, not at the
expense of doing a rush job and potentially missing things. So if it doesn't.. .that
doesn't mean you have wait till 2022, you could still do it in 2018 and then in a year
or two just change over. You don't have to change over at the end of somebody's term,
so, you know, there is that concern. You know when we get down into the nitty gritty
of this, it is going to be a... if there is going to be a recommendation to change the
Charter, that is a huge change. I mean it's not just a couple of sections in the
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Charter, it's a lot of the Charter changed. So I noticed in both of these resolutions,
neither one of them talk about that language. Is this committee, special committee I
guess we're going to call it, is that part of the charge is to actually make the Charter
language change proposal?
CHAIR VICTORINO: If they're going to introduce that for a Charter amendment, yes,
absolutely.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. So maybe we need to put that in the be it resolved to make
sure that that is part of their thing, not just to say do we or do we not need this
change. Because not only does the Charter have to change, we also have to get some
HRS to change. I did a little looking and there is a long list of HRS that, you know,
talk about mayor, but there are several things that specifically say the Mayor has
special powers. So there are things that we have to do there too. So there's a lot of
stuff, it's a lot of moving pieces. I would love to see us discuss it and get somebody
going and get it moving along as quickly as possible. One of the things both you guys
mentioned too is that the Chamber should be made available. Yes, it should be made
available but I would strongly encourage a more intimate and more, you know, like the
committee room maybe downstairs or other places so that people can, both the
audience and the people and can be close and can discuss as opposed to this is really
formal. Even in this informal Committee setup, this is awfully formal in here, and we
want this to be a little bit more give and take, back and forth like the Charter
Commission was. So yeah, it could be used here but I encourage it to be out in the
communities and out in places where we're a little bit closer together. So thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, again nothing's in stone again. As I've said earlier, you know,
these are just some overviews and suggestions we are making at this point. Member
Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. I want to thank both you and Mr. White
for affording us this opportunity to do some exploration I guess when it comes to the
governance of our County. For me I think the 180 days should work. As a former
member of the Charter Commission, we did, we were faced with about 125 proposals
initially and then out that, we ended up with 21, and then concluded with 11
initiatives on the ballot. So we, we're dealing with just one proposal so I would think
that once you have a taskforce or whatever we want to call it, this committee is just
concentrating and focusing on the governance of our County and what sort of
structure we wish to present. And we don't know anything conclusive, whether it's
going to be on the ballot or not, depending what's going to be recommended. I also
feel that 11 is okay, 11 or 9, you know, maybe we can get quorum. And Molokai and
Lanai and Hana as well as the major districts on Maui, I appreciate that kind of
representation. And if we're going to permit Councilmembers and if we look at cost
effective, perhaps Councilmembers from our district can be a part of this dialogue
anyway. I think community members come up with, I'd like to say with good manao,
that they're going to come in that what will benefit our community, so whether or not
it's a business person or what. One thing, if Cost of Government will be doing some of
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the dollars efficiency kind of report, it'd be good to have another committee member to
do something comparative, because I think that's the one thing we're looking at as far
as efficiency. So it is a big paradigm shift for us to even consider something like this.
So it's a serious task, and, you know, I come from the old school of the executive
branch, the legislative branch and, you know, this is like wow, okay. But I can
appreciate the dialogue and the opportunity to have this discussion and respond to
those that may support such a change in structure or may not support it. So I think
starting off with a dialogue with the committee would be most helpful. Except I think
365 days is much too long to come up with some sort of recommendation when it's
just dealing with one proposal. So thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And again, nothing's in stone. Again, you know, well
decide that today. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. I'm going to approach this in a
different manner, Chairman. So let me first say currently I don't support either
proposal.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: For one for me, one, the key thing is to maintain the people's
choice of having an elected head of its executive or Administrative Branch. So I'll state
it upfront, I continue to support an elected position at the top. It's been interesting
hearing the comments, because I can tell you five years ago when I chaired this
Committee, Mr. Chairman, and I had asked I think most every Member that sits here
today five years ago, whether or not we should be considering confirmation of key
appointed officials. I recommended that we consider confirming the Managing
Director, the Finance Director, because by Charter they come number two and three
in the succession of the mayoral position. It was then the wisdom of the Council to
say that they supported the Mayor and his choice of the team that he wanted or she
wanted to perform in the vision that the administrator or the Mayor had for that
Administration. I will still say today that I still believe it is more appropriate for this
Committee to be recommending to the electorate, considerations of confirmation
considerations. Allow the Council to go through and vet the nominees. Let the
Council ask those hard professional questions that seems to come up whenever one
branch seems to heavily hinder the other branch's ability to perform. Now when
everything is working nice, you don't hear any complaints from either the
Administration or the Legislative Branch, and then when we do hear it, it's either one
way or the other depending on which side feels aggrieved. But I think the Council
needs to also step up and do what it needs to do. We've heard assumptions that we're
going to waste half a billion dollars here and there, that's to me based on some
interesting assumptions because I think we're better than that, and I think Council
has proven better than that in the past. How the hell did we respond to 9/11 if this
Council or previous Councils was not up to responsibility and appropriate financing?
We wouldn't have been able to but we did. I think the Council needs to step up, work
in coordination with the County Auditor in making sure that we have the appropriate
audits done to address those concerns of efficiency, appropriate financing, and
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performance of operations. I can count on one hand how many Council has
authorized regarding audits. That is part of our financial and fiduciary responsibilities
as a branch. So before we start looking at the Administration, I would say let's look at
ourselves and make sure we are performing at the level that the community and the
constituency also expects. At this point in time, I will ask the Committee that 'cause
I'm not convinced regarding a county manager, and I've seen a lot of different counties
in my last year as the head of NACo and I'm not convinced today that that's the right
way for us to go. It's depending upon each unique situation. We have counties that
have no responsibility of roads, no responsibility of schools. Well, we don't have
schools anymore, we did, but we still have roads. Others have hospitals, we don't.
The State has that now. But I would say it is still pertinent for us to consider the
Department of Management, Department of Finance. We've heard the main ones,
Water Supply, Public Works, Parks, Environmental Management. Why shouldn't
these directors come before the Council after nomination and be confirmed by the
Council after a public vetment [sic] to see the competency and responsibility that this
individuals would agree to take on behalf of the people? I rather deal with an elected
mayor that I can boot out in four years than deal with a manager that would come to
me with either civil service protection or some other protection. 'Cause what makes
that assurance give me that Lanai is going to be properly administered with from that
type of position? I don't take for granted anything. You know there's nothing wrong
being political, Chairman, it's a problem when you try to drive partisanship in the way
of a good judgment. But being political is part of democracy. It's there, we need to
use it to the people's advantage. It is not a bad thing per Se, if you're really one
democracy. So and that is my position at this time, Chairman. And I thank you for
my few minutes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, you're welcome, Mr. Hokama. And of course you always bring a
very enlightening perspective. Thank you. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, I believe just listening to the
testimony and some of the issues that Mr. Hokama has raised, I'm in favor for, you
know, basically studying the issue more. I like some of the testimony that was given
by some of the former or prior elected officials that said that in their jurisdictions they
use different hybrid type forms of government. I'm interested to see how that, those
structures work, and I'm very open to, you know, making things more efficient. It
seems as though, yeah, politics will always be part of government, but I think that this
County has taken steps in the past to do away with some forms of politics, specifically
on the Council by making it non-partisan. You know at one point, you know, it was
very difficult to get things passed out because either you were a Democrat or you were
a Republican, so and being a forefront in that type of, you know, structure and
revamping the system, I think we did away with a lot of that, you know, internal
politics. I think the next level is are we being more efficient, can we be more efficient
across the board on the Administration side. I know no other way of governing aside
from the mayoral form. You know I took office in a time where I got elected, took office
in January, in February we had a Wailuku Post Office incident, and then from there
on, we've got, we had the memo. We couldn't communicate with the departments. So
and then we had the Launiupoko incident. We had so many different instances in
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which, you know, from my experience hasn't been a good form of government, so I'm
just speaking from experience as a new legislator. I would like to study and see if
there's other ways. I truly believe that Mr. Hokama has a good point in terms of
allowing the Council to vet through those who are appointed as directors. I did put
forth last year right before, maybe a year and a half ago, an ordinance or a Charter
amendment for allowing the Council to terminate Corp. Counsel and that didn't get
far. I have another amendment to the Charter that was basically they have to provide
background and resumes and full-on qualifications to be a director or the head
Prosecuting Attorney. That didn't go anywhere. So I think Mr. Hokama does have a
point, we've gotta step it up. You know if we want to make things happen, we also as
a Council have to step it up, and I think this is one good way of opening the door to
investigate other forms of government. Whether it will work or not, I would like to
study it and I'm open to it. So thank you, Chair. Oh, I have a couple questions on the
amendments.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well let's not cover that, okay. What I'm going to ask everyone, if, when
you come back 1:30 if you have ideas, amendments you want to bring forward, I'll
have no qualms at that point to take them in.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. So -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So I have some amendments.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --it's because it's lunchtime and I want to give everybody
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --some time to absorb what has been said and what's been suggested in
some of the material that we've been given and come back at 1:30. And as far as
. I will say that we will
amendments and questions and changes we can work off
start working off of mine because Mr. White and I have agreed that that will be the
starting point. But it can take any iteration that you form, that you want as a
Council, 'cause this is our form to send out to whoever this Special Committee will be
all about. So if you don't mind well -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, sure.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --bring that up after lunch, if you don't mind -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Sure.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --Mr. Guzman -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Sure.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: --at 1:30?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: So I won't delay any further 'cause it's ten after 12:00 and I want to give
everybody some chance to get relaxed and get some food, and be ready for this
afternoon. I want to say that I want to thank the, again, the public and I want to
thank every Councilmember that is here today for their manao. It has been very
interesting, and I think we're all wanting one thing, better government wherever and
however we can find it. Is that correct, Mr. Guzman? Thank you. So with no
objections, I will take a recess to reconvene at 1:30 p.m. This Committee now stands
in recess. . .(gavel)...
RECESS: 12:09 p.m.
RECONVENE: 1:30 p.m.
CHAIR VICTORINO: . . .(gavel)... The meeting of the Policy and Intergovernmental Affairs
Committee will reconvene. I hope all of you had a great lunch and we're ready to get
rolling. Before we start, I have had it put on the television off to our, to my right, to
your left depending when you're sitting, and we've tried to make the fonts as large as
possible. So for all the kupuna in the gallery, I'm trying our best to make it as large as
possible. I agree with Mr. Couch, maybe next budget session we should have one
more television off to my left or your right, or wherever you're sitting so that no matter
which side of the Council you seat, you can read it clearly. You know as we get older,
yeah, Dick, my glasses are getting thick and I can't see too much in front of me, so I
agree wholeheartedly. A couple of things and then well get down to the specifics.
First of all, I want to say that again as one testifier mentioned that he was able to
go... and Mr. James-Brown [sic], he mentioned that he could get on the computer, in
60 minutes find all, many answers of too many questions. But I wanted to make one
point and I think, Gladys, you're going to remember this because you and I were here
when this was a major issue. And I think, Riki, you were here on the Council at that
time also. Remember about seven-eight years ago we were having such a hard time
getting engineers?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Remember the word engineers? And we were bringing 'em in, we were
giving them bonuses, we were giving housing allowance, we were giving 'em moving
cost to bring 'em here. Top notch engineers from the mainland. The vast majority
within six months to a year, sometimes two years, moved back. Number of reasons,
one, I heard wives were not happy, comfortable, had a hard time adapting. They had a
hard time adapting to the local culture and the local environment. They found after a
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while that they could get a better job back there and they went right back. So, you
know, there is something to be said about opening it up and I think somebody also
mentioned about opening it up so that local talent that is in the mainland might want
to come back and we want them to come back. But let's be careful how much we open
it up to because once they get here and let me be very honest, it's not an easy lifestyle
to adapt to, not everybody does, and we've seen that time in and time out. So I just,
you know, I wanted to throw that one out because it.. .1 was sitting there doing some
review of my notes that I was going to present this morning and I didn't, I failed to do
that one, and that was something that I thought was very interesting that coming here
and adapting to our lifestyle is not always easy. And it has nothing to do with
attitudes, it has nothing to do with culture, it has nothing to do with their heart, it's
the lifestyle, the expense of living here in Maui County or living in the State of Hawaii.
Did anyone see last night the news report that put Hawaii number one cost of living in
the United States, number one. Not number two, number one. And we're much more
expensive than the number two and I think it was District of Columbia and then New
York and there was a couple.. .oh no, no, someplace in Maine, Bridgeport or
something, I forget.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Connecticut.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Connecticut. Well Connecticut, you guys would know that, I apologize.
But you know it was very eye opening to see that. And the cost of utilities, the cost of
gas, the cost of food, unbelievable. So again, those who live here and we struggle to
live here and we try to make ends meet here, someone coming in may have a more
difficult time understanding all of those dynamics. Not to say it's good, not to say it's
bad, but we want to put all the facts on the table. Okay. So with that being said, I
will move along. I have up there some of the suggestions that were made by a number
of you this morning, and I want, and I'm gonna... Mr. Guzman, you may have to, want
to add something or, but I just want to go with some of the basic additions that I
wanted to bring forward. One was Mr. Carroll's suggestion about all district
representatives and two at large, I've included that. And we're going to go through this
very soon. You know the days, numbers, timeframe, I haven't changed anything. I'm
working off of mine because Mr. White has suggested that. And of course where we
can add other verbiage, we will continue. So where is my young lady that I was... she's
not here. Okay. Ms. Willenbrink... oh, there she is. Okay. If you would incorporate,
Ms. Willenbrink...
MS. WILLENBRINK: Excuse me, Chair? Brief recess.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah? Brief recess, okay. We have a technical challenge. Brief recess.
(gavel)...
RECESS: 1:36 p.m.
RECONVENE: 1:37 p.m.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: . . . (gavel)... The meeting of the Policy and Intergovernmental Affairs
Committee will reconvene. Yes, Ms. Baisa, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. I know where we're going to go
here, we're going to try to amend this or tweak it or whatever.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: But I was wondering if it might not be something we should talk
about. Do we have consensus that we want to do this? You know we could spend the
whole afternoon sitting here saying two guys, three guys, Makawao, Haiku, whatever,
and then say, you know, we haven't really agreed that we want to do this.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well again...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's just what I'm thinking.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. Well and this is what this discussion is all about, do we agree or
disagree. So why don't you pull that up, Ms. Willenbrink, as far as the suggestion
that... and I promised Mr. Carroll and Mr. Guzman their suggestion, yours also, you
know, to look at it. So, you know, okay, I'm game. You know so let's move all the way
to the, that portion...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I think he's missing my point.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, no. I think the overall thing right, you're saying?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: What's that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Go ahead. I think Couch heard me.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I believe she's asking do we even want to move forward with this at
this point until we determine whether or not there is a consensus?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That we want to do it.
CHAIR VICTORINO: So in other... okay, all right, all right. So I will open the floor for
discussion whether we want to move to make any governance change or not. I think
that's what the question is at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's the question.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Have the conversation.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Have the conversation, okay. But I'm going to limit the discussion for
the next half an hour because I want to move on.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: So either you're for or you're not and then we go from there. And then
let's not get into details, just say yes, I'd like to and this is why, and no, I don't and
this is why, and I then I can get a kind of feel. And then I'll call for the question if you
want, Ill ask for a resolution. So I'll start with you, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I think it's appropriate for us to have the conversation.
As I said earlier, I think the committee that is formed can come up with a
recommendation or not, but I think it's important for us to have the, have a review.
So I would, I support moving forward.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes, I would support moving forward and discussing all the
alternatives and trying to -CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --see . . . (inaudible)...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Mr. Hokama? And I know your way but just please, I
asking.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah. Since you asked, Chairman, no, I'm not in support.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm in support of having the conversation through a
taskforce or committee.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I am in support of having the conversation. Thanks.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm also in support of having the discussion. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'm very conflicted but I can count.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: I think we all can count.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Ill support with reservations.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, okay, thank you. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I support having the discussion, but I'd like to note that's not
what I asked for on the board.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well we'll, we're going to work on it. Again, I didn't say that's all what
you wanted.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Just to note that.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. You know this is the suggestion about every district having a
representative. I got very specific on it too, but okay. All right. So from what I can
feel right now, let's have the discussion and move on. Okay. First of all, taking some
of your ideas, Mr. Carroll, I decided to put in instead of Councilmembers, I took out
Councilmembers, I took out business executives, I took all of the... and actually put
specific districts. You asked for one from each district, well I got specific so that every
district would be represented. Okay. So I went with the Council districts as the
predication on what districts I was going to be asking for. So that's what this, and two
at large. So we're still with 11, and 2 at large.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That right there, that is what I had proposed right there.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. Well, that's what I had but all stretched out and that's okay.
Thank you. So let's start with this, let's make this the first discussion point. And Ill
start with you, Mr. Carroll, since you brought up the idea which I concurred
wholeheartedly. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I think we all know the great importance
of what we're trying to address here. And it has been said by testifiers and in the
newspaper and everyplace else how important it is to get the maximum participation
that we can. By getting somebody from the districts and I cannot believe we can't find
good people in the different districts, that would be really, really sad, especially with
all of the interest in this. By doing that in the districts maybe Lahaina, perhaps
Lahaina, they would want somebody from the hotel industry because of their interests
over there, but it would allow the districts to go over there and us to look at the
proposal, the proposed applicants from those districts and have the Committee make
the choice who we're going to put on there. And try to get a balanced committee of
people that are of different strengths and also representing the different portions of
our County. And I would hope that we could do this.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, I thank you, Mr. Carroll, and I agree to a point. I don't know if I
want to wait for names to be submitted by application and all that. I'm really in the
modem [sic] of trying to get this done today. No later...
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I have no problem with that. When I said -CHAIR VICTORINO: You know and so I hope that you all -COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --that it's just that -CHAIR VICTORINO: --have ideas.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --we can choose.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. Yeah. You guys have some ideas -COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And it gives us the latitude...
CHAIR VICTORINO: --amongst all these people have testified.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Chair, it gives us the latitude -CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --to make choices of different types of people with different
types of expertise.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well and if we cannot today, then we can set a date specific, but I would
like to get this rolling because the time clock's rolling. And the longer we take to
decide, the longer.., the shorter the time gets to be. So I'm in the modem [sic] -COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That addresses my concerns.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --if we're going to do it, we do it. Okay? Thank you. Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. Since I'm playing the game, I
think it's a really good idea to have the way we have the, every district having one and
two at large. I have two criteria or two things that I have concern with this. One is
who will make that choice, and secondly is I would not like to see, put political
candidates on this committee.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Absolutely. If I take out Councilmembers, then I do not want political
candidates, I gotta be very honest with you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You know they tried this before with another -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --election and promises were made, so I think we want to be
really careful.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And I want to try to stay away from former Councilmembers too and
former. . . (inaudible).
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Some new names, some new faces.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. New names, new faces, and people that have some criteria, and I
think we do need to get -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --some criteria.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I agree.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You know so anyhow.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I agree.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I like the slate of, you know, the prospective slate that
Mr. Carroll has put... or you suggested, so at this point is to figure out, yeah, criteria
and who will fit the bill here in representing these different districts.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But I'm in support of what's being presented here.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And that list looks good. As far as the names
are concerned, that I think would be kind of, cannot do today 'cause we got.. .we each
are going to have to... it depends on how we're going to do it. Are we going to each one
of us nominate one person?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Did we not ask you come back prepared to get some names? Because
mister...
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VICE-CHAIR COUCH: No, I understand that.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, okay. It's not like today I asked that. Mr. White at the meeting a
month ago almost asked to bring forward some names, so I was hoping everybody
came prepared with some names. So that's what I'm hoping to.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Got plenty of names, just gotta. . .in my, when I make my decision, I'm
going to ask the person first before I put out a name. So I've asked most of the people
but I'm not there yet.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And I have asked everybody also in my list.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: The question is are we each nominating one and everybody voting on
it and then go to the next seat, all the way down?
CHAIR VICTORINO: That may be one way or I haven't decided, nothing has been
(inaudible)... First I wanted to get this and then once this is agreed upon then that
would be the next step.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I think we're fine with this.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I think we should deal with the names at a different point in time.
Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm okay with what we're doing.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'll wait till I see some kind of final version, Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: You know what, I still have my reservations with that many
people on the... and how the selection is going to be done. I was... I don't know, I think
I anticipated more of like maybe going outside for an independent study. You know
almost like what they have here in this International Counties and City [sic]
Management Association Report. And so I'm not sure how in depth or what the
experiences will be among those members of this slate, but hopefully they would... at
least we put in some provisions to allow them to work with other agencies and get the
facts and the data. I don't want them spinning their wheels and making this more of a
political fight as opposed to a data, facts, you know, presented type. 'Cause it's really
we're asking them to present facts in a presentation or their recommendation based off
of what? You know so they're going to need to have some type of ability to engage with
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fact finders or an agency that can collect the data. And so I'm not sure where you
want to go with this, Chair, but I would like to see more of professional... not that I'm
saying that people out there are not professional, but there are agencies and
institutions that actually do these type of studies and that are independent.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And I agree with you. And some of the agencies that have been brought
up today that are being discussed, are being bandered [sic] about is something that I
would like to include. Also the other idea is we as Councilmembers and the Cost of
Government Committee [sic] being like ex officio so we can participate. Whenever they
bring something in, we're not voting members, we can sit there, be a part of, listen to.
I think Mr. White's idea has been something of that nature so that we are
participatory, you know. And when we bring in these outside agencies like the
international council or I forget the exact title, they come in with the expertise, then
we can sit there and listen and understand what they're talking about. So it would
not be limited to.. .this is just the committee, and then from there, let them take it
from there. Let's give them some direction but let them decide which way they would
like to go. So I agree with you, yeah, we need some -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --professionalism in this whole thing. That's why I'm also very wanting
very much to put a facilitator who has no voting rights, has no agenda, has no
pontification on what the matters are but to keep the meetings moving on and make
sure that they follow what needs to be done. And that professional facilitator, all it
does is conductor of the meeting and that's all that person does. So that's something
I'll talk about a little bit more in depth. But right now I wanted just to see if by having
the 11 members representing every district and 2 at large would encompass more or
less what you would like to see as far as the committee is concerned. There's more to
be discussed, Mr. Guzman. So are you okay with the, just the setup?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Well, I'm going to reserve because I don't know what the
criteria is for the setup.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, well okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Is that okay? Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And again.., okay. Do you agree with all the districts being represented?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes, I do.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. That's all I need to know. Okay. Getting answers
out of some people is difficult. That's okay, Mr. Guzman. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, I'm reasonably comfortable with it. And I would also just
to add to what you mentioned, the thought was that all Councilmembers would be
non-voting members of the committee so that when the people come in from ICMA or
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other resource people, that we can go and attend without any kind of Sunshine Law
violation. And I would also suggest as you just mentioned that we make the, all the
members of the Cost of Government Commission non-voting members as well so that
they can come in and take part and get the same exposure as the committee members
and the Councilmembers.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. No, I have no problems with that. Do any of you have a problem
with what Mr. White has suggested and what we're suggesting as adding all of you as
non-voting members and also the Cost of Government as non-voting members so that
they can attend any of these special presentations brought in by the outside groups so
that we have a better understanding what's going on? Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. I have no problem with, you know,
the involvement. I just want to make sure that if this is going to be a community
citizen-driven committee, that that's what it is. And, you know, as non-voting
Members when we attend our meetings where were non-voting Members our Members
are very generous and courteous about letting us speak and, you know, participate. I
just want to make sure that we don't dominate the meetings.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And Mr. White will make sure to that. Thank you, Mr. White.
Mr. Carroll, you raised your hand, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No, I think that's fine. It's, it should be able to. I can't see
all of us attending the meetings all the time.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I don't think this whole Council will be there, but I think it's
important especially when a Member has something that they think should be brought
to the attention of the committee, that we're able to go over there and address it as a
non-voting member. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I object. For one very reason, I think there's a potential
conflict. You look at the Charter, Section 3.8 which is the declaration of policy
regarding duplications, consolidation of services, functions. I think the Cost of
Government is in a difficult position because I consider them a duplication of service,
especially since we have a County Auditor. So for me is, I don't know how trustworthy
it is regarding self-preservation of a appointed group of people. So I have my issues.
Thank you.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Okay. Moving right along and we can come back to
this matter when we get to the area of whether we should incorporate that or not. So
my question is, you know, for the sake of movement and to get this, I would like to
entertain a motion that Councilmembers and the Cost of Government... oh, I guess you
gotta put a separate one. So number six, that the Cost of.. .well we don't have a
motion on the floor in the first place, I going stop right there. Do I have consensus
that Councilmembers may participate as non-voting members of this Special
Committee?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Can I get a... can we ask the question to Corp. Counsel,
whether there's a... -CHAIR VICTORINO: I don't think there is but okay, I'll go ahead. Go ahead, Corporation
Counsel, please.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --whether we're in violation of any duplication? Is there a
violation of the Charter in regards to duplication of services if we go forward with this
type of language?
MR. KUSHI: Duplication of services?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, the Cost of Government.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, wait a minute, wait a minute, we're only on Council.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: We're not on Cost of Government.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh right. Right, right.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I'm just talking about the Councilmembers at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Then is there any issues in terms of having the
Councilmembers be non-voting members of this committee or standing committee?
MR. KUSHI: There might be a problem if five or more of you show up, 'cause you're part of
the group even though you're non-voting.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Even if we're non-voting members?
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MR. KUSHI: Yeah, but you're part of the group. So there's a possible Sunshine issue.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Questions? Any other questions? Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I'd like to have a little bit more discussion with Mr. Kushi on this. If
we're actual members of that committee then does that... and this committee I believe
is supposed to go by the Rules of the Council. Is this committee going to be under the
Sunshine Law as well? I think, yeah, I think it's under the Sunshine Law so I think
we should be covered there but I'm not, I mean I would like to...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Kushi, would you like to address that question, please?
MR. KUSHI: Yes, Mr. Chair and Mr. Couch, I have a problem with this whole thing. I'm not
sure if you guys saw my memo to Chair White on this. But I don't believe you're
authorized to establish this type of committee. That being the case, you know...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Everybody don't get excited.. .(inaudible)... Go ahead.
MR. KUSHI: You know you guys do what you want -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
MR. KUSHI: --but our office is not going to sign off on this. And again, we, I cautioned the
Council through Mr. White, that there may be consequences if this committee comes,
this so-called committee comes up with an action or a report and someone challenges
that report as being void because of the Sunshine Law. But in any event, at the end of
the day, the action will be with this body on Charter amendments regardless where
the recommendation comes from. But I'm concerned about the makeup of this socalled standing committee, because your Council Rules definitely don't allow it. I'm
concerned about the membership of the committee being non-County people, nonCouncil people. If this committee is a board or commission, these people become
They're subject to the ethics and they're subject to liabilities and
officers.
responsibilities, and you may have to cover them in case they get hurt while attending
these meetings. So, you know, those are the kind of concerns our office would have.
I'm not addressing the merits of the committee itself. Again but this body would
eventually say yea or nay to a Charter resolution regardless of where the report comes
from.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Kushi. Mr. White first and then Ms. Balsa, but go
ahead, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Kushi, my recollection is that you said
that as long as we waive the Rules of the Council, that there's not a problem with
forming such a committee, and I believe under Robert's Rules, special committees can
be formed by the body and whether they include members of the board or not. So...
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, go ahead, Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Yes, I saw that note from Mr. Raatz and I agree with Robert's Rules. You need
to first waive your rules, Council Rules. But in any event, if you appoint non-County
employee people to a standing committee, it is subject to the Sunshine Law, they
become officers and that liability attaches whether or not you waive your Rules.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I understand that. But we've done that in the past as well,
we've done it. . .(inaudible)...
MR. KUSHI: You may have done it but we've never signed off on it. I've never seen any
resolution establishing the, your so-called subcommittees. Mr. Guzman has a working
ag group, I'm not sure how that was formed.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, that's clearly not an official group but we've had -MR. KUSHI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --the Council, both at the Council level and the committee level,
we've established a variety of special committees -MR. KUSHI: How?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --or one special committee and...
MR. KUSHI: Through resolution?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MR. KUSHI: I don't recall ever signing off on one.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well it's been over.. .we had one on real property tax, we've had
one on housing or... and so, you know, there were, I believe our Staff found five
different committees that were formed virtually the same way that we're doing this. So
whether it got signed off on or not, I don't know.
MR. KUSHI: Yeah, I don't know either. This... I just address this so-called committee.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm sure.. .1 hope Staff is looking or watching so they can go and
check.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, and I have already called upon the Staff to come up and, you
know, to make us better understand what's going on. And I don't want to get hung up
on one issue right this very second. And if for any reason it would make it more
expedient and more proper to take those two out, I have no problem with taking them
out. But I'm saying from what I've been told and what I understand that as non-
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voting members we can just be there to understand and hear what goes on when these
special presentations are made, and that's what I was told, you know. And quorum
was not an issue.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And Ms. Balsa brought up, I think a point that's very important
that this is for.. .and doing this is for the process of education, not going in and, you
know, imposing our will on the committee. So I'm assuming that the eventual chair of
this committee would have the wherewithal just to not call on non-voting members if
they're not.. .1 mean if they're being too pushy about being involved, I wouldn't have a
problem with the chair of the committee saying okay, we're done, you guys have had,
you guys can testify, but.. .we're happy to have you there for educational purposes but
not get involved in the process.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And I also like the matter of non-voting, you know, we have no way of
making any of our.. .we can say what we want and that's it. Like a testifier can come
here and say what they want and that's it, done, over, and we don't have any voting
power. I brought up Mr. Raatz from downstairs, and, David, I don't know if you've
been following what's been going up. I've asked you to pay attention and you have,
thank you. Mr. Kushi has made a few statements about signing off and as well as the
challenge of the Council and the Cost of Government being non-voting members in
attendance for educational purposes. You had a different take on this so would you
like to express your take on this, Mr. Raatz? And by the way, will you introduce
yourself, David?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Is the mic on?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
MR. RAATZ: This is David Raatz, Director of Council Services. You know I'm not sure how
different my take is necessarily, ultimately than Mr. Kushi but I can try to provide a
little bit of background. There was a time I think throughout the late '90s most
notably when the Council had a habit of creating special committees at the Council
level or subcommittees at the committee level to study various issues. In most cases
those bodies were composed of both Councilmembers and members of the public, and
they were treated as Sunshine Law bodies so they received staffing from the Office of
Council Services. Typically Corporation Counsel attended the meetings as they would
meetings of this body for instance or other standing committees or the County
Council. One difference perhaps between now and then, currently every action that's
done by the Council that has any substance is done by ordinance or resolution, so in
that era there was action that was done based on County communications which are
just letters basically that the Council would review and sign off on. So, you know, I
think it may be accurate that Corporation Counsel didn't have occasion to sign off on
a resolution for instance establishing a standing committee for the Council back in
that era because no resolution was presented. Again, the action was taken in a
different format, just approving a piece of correspondence, a letter that we label a
County communication that was presented for the Council's consideration. And
again, at the committee level, the subcommittees were deemed to be purely creatures
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of the committee so that was never sent up to the Council for approval, so again, there
was no resolution that would have been presented to the Corporation Counsel for
approval. I don't recall objections at that time to the nature of having an advisory
committee that was again composed of both Councilmembers and members of the
public and having that entity serve as an official advisory body.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Raatz. Questions for Mr. Raatz?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. And, Mr. Raatz, we, I know we had the TIG for the hiring
of our County Auditor but I think that was just three Members, I can't remember if we
had external...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Three.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Yeah. My question is if this committee were, if this resolution were to
pass and this committee was formed, where would the funding come from and who
would staff it? You had mentioned that if it's going to be a Sunshine Law thing,
typically well have a Corporation Counsel and a Staff member. Where is all that
coming from?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Well, we haven't budgeted for in effect a tenth standing
committee in Office of Council Services, but we would take on the responsibility of
ensuring compliance with the Sunshine Law and other laws and providing the
research, logistical, secretarial, clerical assistance. So we would have to find the
money somewhere in the legislative budget and we haven't done an estimate on
exactly what that would cost, but I don't believe that it would be to such a degree that
we couldn't afford to do it, we might just have to defer certain expenditures for
budgeted matters maybe till the next fiscal year if we had to take on the responsibility
of staffing a new committee.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Ms. Baisa, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No, I'm very interested in the discussion about budget and where
money would come from. You know we have a very tight budget that I know of,
particularly in Council Services, and we're also under the A, B, C limitation. So I
think if we're going to do this, somebody better be working on a budget amendment.
Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good idea, Mr. Raatz, and something maybe we look at. Mr. White, you
have anything you'd like to add?
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I just think that, you know, we need to decide whether we're
going to move forward with the waiver of the Rules or not, because it's... I don't see
that the Corp. Counsel has ever objected to earlier committees being created. So I'm
not.. .well, I can't say I'm not the slightest bit concerned, but I'm comfortable that we
have the ability to establish special committees with the waiver of the Rules. And I
think we have the ability to make those committees with or without Councilmembers.
And I think it's pretty clear in Robert's Rules that that's an acceptable thing to do for
exactly the purpose that we're intending to use it for.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Any other more.. .any more discussion or questions
for Mr. Raatz? Seeing none, David, thank you. And maybe you'd like to hang around
a little while just to see where this leads us. And at this point, I'm trying to move this
forward so that we could get it completed today as best we can, so let's see where we
go with this. So again, do we have consensus, number one, on leaving number six
that Councilmembers may participate as non-voting members of this Special
Committee, do we have consensus to that?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I object.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. And number seven...
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Mr. Chair, we had an objection.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Who was the objection?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Me.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Mr. Hokama.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, then do I need a motion to move this forward? I mean I want to be
fair about it. Do I hear a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, I move that item six be included in the reso.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Do I hear a second?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Second.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. It's been moved by Mr. White and seconded by Mr. Guzman.
Any further discussion? All those in favor, signify by saying "aye." Oh, I'm sorry,
mister.. .1 apologize, Mr. Hokama. Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, my main concern about this is until you set what
you would like the full committee to be, whatever it is, I have a hard time with nine
members being non-official on a nine-member committee. I mean what's the sense?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know for me, I mean what is then the purpose of the
committee if you're going to have all of us sitting as non-official members?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. You know I have no preference one way or the other. We have a
motion, we have a second, you can vote it up or down at this point. Yes, Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I believe Mr. White's comments were that it will allow us to go and
attend these meetings, especially when we have people.. .if we have somebody from
these organizations.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Special, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Special organizations without having to deal with the Sunshine Law.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Absolutely. Okay? Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I think that's why, correct me if I'm wrong, Mr. White, that's why you
wanted to put that in here?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Correct.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'm having.. .you know, while I like participation and I think we
all want to go and I think most of us will go because, you know, this is a big deal and
when it's a big deal I'm like, you know, you're either at the table or on the menu so I
like to go. And but, you know -CHAIR VICTORINO: I don't want to be on the menu.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --but what you're talking about is essentially 11 people plus
18 more, we better.. .we're talking about venue, we'd have a heck of a time even getting
in the committee room. That's a lot of bodies. I don't know how wieldy this is. Also,
we're talking about off-island meetings 'cause we want to go to Molokai and Lanai and
possibly to Hana. So it's a pretty big group to try to move.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well and again, Ms. Balsa, I not disagreeing with you, but again, for the
purpose of education. Again, when we do some.. .when we're doing this phase of the
educational process I don't think well be moving around from County.. .island to
island. That's why we want representation from those neighboring districts. Okay.
Once we get it done and then we go out with whatever the proposal comes up, then

POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 2, 2015

that'll be different. I don't think we need to escort them at that point in time because
they've come up with their proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, we haven't decided yet, Chair. And the other thing is are
we going to be broadcasting all of this? 'Cause I think that's very essential.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And I think that's why Mr. White and I, Mr. White and my proposals
were to use this Chamber for that specific purpose.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I think it's very, very important that the meetings be broadcast.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, absolutely. And not only these Chambers but maybe even the
Planning Department's room. I mean someplace where we can televise all the
meetings. Okay. That's very important. Yeah. So I think you see where I'm trying to
take this, and again, nothing's... I mean we can sit here and discuss it till the cow
jumps over the moon and that ain't going be soon. So I just want to see where you
guys feel, do you want... do you think this is a good idea or not. Ill leave it in there.
When it's all said and done if we want to make a change at the very end when we're
ready to make the final proposal, I can do that also, so I leave it open. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Just for clarification. I think it's.. .1 don't know if my...
CHAIR VICTORINO: You gotta get closer.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm pretty damn close.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: My intent for putting this in is to allow us to attend and be
sitting in the gallery and the same thing with the Cost of Government Commission
members so that we can hear the presentations. It's not to be on the floor
participating. It's not... I don't want this to be construed as us having to fund travel
for 18 extra people to other venues should we choose to go with the committee. So it
may be simpler if we don't do it and we can just, you know, those of us who want to
attend can attend and we just write the requisite report and the Cost of Government
can do the same thing. I don't want to make this any more difficult than necessary,
so, you know, I'm happy to withdraw my motion and we just simply... if more than...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Five of us attend.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right. Then we can -CHAIR VICTORINO: We write a report.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --write a report and off we go. And the same thing with the Cost
of Government Commission.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. Just to prolong this a little bit more. You know you
can really get into semantics when you do this kind of--what you call--scripting. But
anyway, I think the word participate, you know, like Mr. White, in my mind I don't
mind all of, everybody going but kind of sitting in the gallery listening and not at the
table, you know, kind of participating in everything that's going on. Because then
we're going to turn this into a mini Council or a maxi Council.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: If we change...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: But maybe change it to attend and not participate.
CHAIR VICTORINO: That's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Because, you know, I want the members -CHAIR VICTORINO: Any objections to that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --of the committee to be the people that drive it.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Any objections to the changing the words.. .and you
made the motion, any objections to change the wording from "may participate" to "may
attend?" Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. All right. So well change both of them to may attend as
non-voting members. How's that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay? Any more discussion? Seeing none.. .oh yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: It's just me, I'm just -CHAIR VICTORINO: No, that's okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --confused. I have this in front of me from Corporation
Counsel that we all have.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, I passed it out to everyone, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right. And then we have Mr. Raatz's explanation -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --how it sort of contradicts what is set before us. But then I
also look at, to just the wording, avoid the risk and/or litigation. So for me I don't
want to deal with litigation. I... but then should that happen, we have to turn to
Corporation Counsel, not Office of Council Service [sic] to represent on our behalf or
my behalf as a Councilmember. So I just want it, want to be sure that as it be so
resolved that the Rules that is noted here with this correspondence from the, from
Mr. Wong, Corporation Counsel, 'cause the recommendation is for us to do, establish
a TIG as opposed to setting up this Special Committee. So where do I want this to go?
I don't know because you've got two legal sides of it, but the end result is, you know, if
it so happens that we're going to have to turn to Corporation Counsel and what will we
get? I told you so. So I guess, Chair, then we should conclude that we're going to take
the recommendation from Mr. Raatz and not even pay attention to this?
CHAIR VICTORINO: The conclusion is the way you vote will tell me which way you want to
go.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (inaudible)...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. So either you say yes to this, that means you agree...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well, we're just voting on this, yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And if you say no to that, then you mean you agree with Corporation
Counsel. That's the best explanation I can give you, Ms. Crivello, at this point in time.
Okay? Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I know we're talking about number six but I think along Ms. Crivello's
lines is a TIG. Has there been consideration for a TIG? Then this whole point would
be moot. Because if we say, we go through this, we get the resolution, we will have to
staff it, is Corp. Counsel.. .if they don't think that this a valid group, are they even
going to come and be part of the staff? Which is what we're going to need to require as
well.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Kushi, I would like to ask you this specific question, with the
verbiage that has been put up on the board where it says strictly attend, not
participate but attend, would this fall more into the lines of what we've been
discussing as far as being there but not being a part of? We're there for educational
purposes specifically and only. I'm
asking the question. Mr. Kushi, please.
MR. KUSHI: Okay. Ill try to answer it this way.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. KUSHI: The language says may attend as non-voting members. So you may or you may
not attend but you're still a member, albeit non-voting. So it's kind of like a hybrid. If
you're a member and you don't show up, then it's unexcused absence. But again, the
way it stands, if you're going to go with those two languages, it's fine and well as long
as if there's four or more of you, I mean more than four of you, you need to write up a
report under the HRS, likewise the Cost of Government.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Is that clarification enough for you -VICE-CHAIR COUCH: No.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I was going at a higher level in that if this whole resolution goes
through as, you know, as we massage it and we form this committee, and we staff it
with our Staff, are we going to have participation by Corp. Counsel? Which I think we
need to because it's Sunshine Law.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, that question maybe is beyond my pay grade. If my boss directs me
to attend, I will attend. Likewise the staff over here, they don't make a decision, their
Director does. So, you know, if we're called to attend, we will, although our position is
as far as we're concerned it's a non-committee. And, Mr. Chair, if I may bring this up
too?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, go ahead.
MR. KUSHI: This whole process in this committee is going to cost money, staff time, our
staff, your Staff, travel time/expenses. If I was a Tea Party member which I'm not, I
think there's a good case about misuse of County funds. I just bring that up to just
let you.. .lay everything on the table, because it's not, as far as we're concerned and
you have it in writing, we feel this committee is not technically established. But again,
you've done it before, so.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You know in listening to you, Mr. Kushi and to all of you, this is my
recommendation. I'd like to delete six and seven entirely, and just, if you want to
come, you come, you don't, you don't. I don't think we're going to make a big issue of
it. And so with my recommendation... if you don't mind withdrawing your motion
mister...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'll withdraw.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And, Mr. Guzman, your second. I would like to strike those two so that
we can move on. Any...
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VICE-CHAIR COUCH: No objections.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Will you let me get done to what I'm going to say? Okay.
All right. Moving right along. All right. All right. This is my baby right here, okay,
and I'm going to tell you, this is probably the one, most important one in my mind
beyond the time and the timeframe is this one. The Special Committee shall retain a
non-voting facilitator to organize, manage, and facilitate committee functions. And
again, to me this is really important to keep the whole ball moving. I've been a part of
those, I've seen it done very well, especially when you get a professional who knows
what she or he is doing, it moves along very expediently. And so this is what I bring
up on number six, a facilitator has no voting right, is there to just conduct, organize,
manage, and facilitate the committee's functions. Any questions or any suggestions?
Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair, I'm ready to move that if we are going to go ahead with
this, that that be a part of the package.
CHAIR VICTORINO: So I'm going to ask if we are moving this along and again, just to move it
along, is there any objections to putting that verbiage as number six in this phase of
the report? Any objections? Yes, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Just for clarification.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think it might be appropriate to leave that as a "may" in case
there's somebody that gets named to the committee that has those skills, we don't
need to...
CHAIR VICTORINO: But I won't want somebody who's named to the committee as a voting
member.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, you're right.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Remember, non-voting member.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Or somebody... so you're not saying that this has got to be a paid
position, right?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well I think well probably have to give some money for somebody if
they're a professional. I believe there may, Mr. White, to be perfectly honest with you,
probably so. I don't think they're going to do it for free. If somebody willing to give us
pro bono, I'll be very happy. But again, this facilitator would be a non-voting, a
non-committee member. That's to me is very important so they can move things
along. And I hope you understand what I'm trying to get to, this is very important.
Other than that, whether they're paid or not paid, I hope we can find somebody to help
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us, but if not, maybe something that's reasonable and, you know, whatever. We could
set limits on how much and whatever, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I don't have a problem with the recommendation, I think I
would just be more comfortable with using the word "may" instead of "shall."
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well again, the "may" then may be turned later on to having somebody
else do it and not be a non-voting member. I really want that should not be a
non... should be a non-voting member, the facilitator. That's all. . . (inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I'm not arguing that.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. So semantics, well just leave it there for now and then we can
always go back and look at it, if there's no objections? Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I have an objection.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I want a "shall."
CHAIR VICTORINO: You want a "shall."
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah. You know I'm being told and pressured that we're going to
save half a billion dollars, I don't mind paying somebody.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. I will ask.. .and again, just to keep things moving along, how
many would like "shall", raise your right hand. . . or consensus or shall? How many
would rather not. . .or have "may"? I counted five to three. . .or actually five to two.
We're waiting for you, Mr. Guzman, please. I'm sorry. The question is, Mr. Guzman,
should we have the word "shall" retain a non-voting facilitator to organize, manage,
and facilitate the committee meeting or "may?" There's some of us that feel like "shall"
is better because that makes sure that the facilitator would not be a voting member,
whereas "may" may open that and say, oh, we couldn't find somebody so now the
facilitator is the chair of the committee. And so this way we could facilitate and move
it along at a more expedient rate. But you go ahead, Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Are you...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Number six.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: The way I read it is that you shall retain -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --right?
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Then what's the issue?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So you have to retain a -CHAIR VICTORINO: No, no, no. But some people wanted the word changed -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --non-voting -CHAIR VICTORINO: --to "may."
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --facilitator.
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, but some people.. .Mr. White suggested we change that to "may"
instead of "shall."
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So it's maybe you can or maybe you...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. Would you prefer "shall" or "may?"
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Well, "shall" because if you... I think it does need to have a
facilitator.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Okay, I think...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: You got the votes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You got the votes, okay. Let's.. .moving right along. Okay, our next
issue, Ms. Willenbrink.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: While she's -CHAIR VICTORINO: Moving, okay.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --moving that up. I know this is a Council.. .is this considered.. .well
because the Corp. Counsel isn't sure. Are we discussing... I mean I know this is a
Council committee but, you know, there is an Administration that has 2,500
employees that might have some information that would be very important. So is
it. . . are we excluding County employees from this or should we have somebody from an
administrative level involved in here maybe as one of the non or the --75-
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CHAIR VICTORINO: At large.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --at large?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, I mean there was discussion both ways and I think the vast
majority that I heard, and correct me if I'm wrong, said they'd rather not.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay? Now am I wrong in what I heard? I heard some say they didn't
mind it, others that said they rather not. So I'm at this point saying they can be used
as resources just like us and others, but we want to keep this as independent as
possible. So I'm open to ideas. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well as far as, you know, expertise, that's what I'm looking for.
I'm looking for people that have experienced this, even maybe have served as a
managing director a long time ago or something. Because if you haven't really worked
in this, it's interesting the perception public has about how government works and it's
not a very favorable one. I'd like to have both sides, you know, I want somebody to say
without a mayor this would happen, with a mayor this happens, this is with a
department head.. .you know, they bring real live experience. So we definitely want to
have some people who have done this. I don't know if we necessarily want to have
people that are actively employed right now, 'cause then you might have conflicts.
But, you know, people that have served and know I think are a good idea.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Again, we were... there was another area that I was going to bring
up is some criteria.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's it.
CHAIR VICTORINO: The word "criteria" was something that I, well that was my first
predication when I put business executive, what do you call that, hospitality executive.
It wasn't that I wanted that specific person or persons but the expertise in certain
areas. So do you want to put down some criteria for expertise in various areas?
Whether they're long-time business owner or business operator or whatever it may be
but something that gives clear guidelines to whenever this committee is set up that
this helps them put a better committee together. So, Ms. Crivello, you have.. .you're
looking at me like you have something you want to say so I'm opening the floor to you
first.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I don't have anything to say right now because -CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --I just
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CHAIR VICTORINO: You're trying to absorb everything.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No. I have some things to say but not at this moment.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. I'm open, you know. Like I say, everything is on the
table. I'm not trying to exclude or, you know, preclude anybody's ideas so please come
forward. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And before I get to your.. .yes, we need
criteria, but I've been sitting here as like Ms. Crivello I believe, really trying to digest
the letter especially from Mr. Kushi and his comments. And kind of getting back to
standard.. .standing committee versus a TIG. And I think in the general sense can we
still get the outcome of what we're looking, you know, out of the committee standing
out of a TIG to allay the possible -CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, let me clarify one thing.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --you know, litigation.
CHAIR VICTORINO: This is not a standing committee, this is a special committee.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Or special.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: This is different, okay?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well...
CHAIR VICTORINO: So I just don't want to get the terms all mixed up now.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And -CHAIR VICTORINO: Special Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --then so I'm looking at the letter and I believe and this will
probably, the question goes to Mr. Kushi. I believe this memo is in response to
Mr. White's reso and not necessarily your reso, right? So the rebuttal here is in
reference to Mr. White's reso, but we're currently working off of yours. Is that correct,
Mr. Kushi? Your memo we have in hand.
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair? Yes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, go ahead, Mr. Kushi.
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MR. KUSHI: Member Cochran, yes, I addressed Mr. White's reso, but I will still have the
same concerns with Mr. Victorino's reso.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, okay. That was something I wanted clarification on.
And then I guess getting back to the TIG versus special, you know, a special
committee -CHAIR VICTORINO: Special committee, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --can we still get same, similar outcome if we establish the
TIG versus this to allay the concerns of our Corporation Counsel is kind of where I'm
sort of tossing that around in my head right now too. So that's just to put on the table
there, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, that's fine. Ms. Willenbrink, you had something you wanted
to.. .no. You was looking at me so I got nervous, you know, for a moment there.
Mr. White, you've heard the question, you and I have discussed this and so I ... 1 guess
the question, the million dollar question, can we get the same results with a TIG
versus a special committee? And so I'm going to give you the opportunity to address
that because we've discussed it but I'm going to give you the opportunity to address it.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: The reason I don't favor a TIG is that I, it's my understanding
that a TIG can only be made up of Councilmembers, and that the public participation
would be limited to them being called in as resource people, not as members or voting
members of any group. So, you know, to me there's no sense setting up a TIG if the, if
that can't be expanded to include public participation in the voting. And, you know,
again, we're just, we're thrashing back and forth on this when the reality is Mr. Kushi
has said if we waive the Rules of the Council we're okay to go.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you for that clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: You know I... anyway.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Kushi?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And I'll add...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, I'm sorry, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm sorry, I'll add to that.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I don't see this.. .yeah, this is not.. .what this committee does is
going to be a recommendation, it's not going to be a final decision. So let somebody

POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 2, 2015

challenge a recommendation because it's then going to come back to the Council, the
Council's going to massage it the way we always massage things, and that's when the
final decision will be made. Until then, it's a recommendation and nothing more.
We're getting our.. .in a knot over something I don't think is terribly worrisome. How
many times have actions been challenged? And when the rules, if we waive our Rules
then Robert's Rules prevail and we can move ahead and form a special committee with
or without Councilmembers involved in it, pretty clear to me.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. White. Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Then I would make a motion to add that be it
resolved number one, that Council waives rule seven on committees of the Council for
this particular committee, if that allays Mr. Kushi's fears.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: We may have to waive the rule before we pass it.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah. Before we pass it.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: It can't be part of the -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I don't think that solves it.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --reso?
CHAIR VICTORINO: No. Mr. Kushi?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: Yes, I believe Chair White is correct.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: All right, so.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: All right. Well have to...
CHAIR VICTORINO: All right, moving right...
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Then in the committee report and your whatever -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, I will.. .yes.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --has to have that.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, absolutely. Okay. Moving right along, are we clear or are we okay
with this one? Ms. Cochran, you're smiling so I'm assuming you're like okay but.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We're good.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. All right. Moving right along, the other big question was number
one, the special committee on the, on County governments would be established from
the date of the resolution, and I don't think that's a question. And I had put down for
365 days. I was interested in what Mr. Mayer put forward except for a couple of
words, but I open the discussion, you know. I think, I want to make sure whatever is
done is given enough time to do it right. If a facilitator can move this along and get it
done and you get it on the ballot for which some of them want right away, I got no
problem with that. And it ain't me personally, baby, it's what the people of Maui
County want. So I open the discussion right now. Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I would suggest that we change the 365 to 180
and say, but add a clause that allows Council to extend that deadline by resolution.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. I have a proposal, is there a second to that proposal?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
VICE-CHAIR

COUCH: Would you like a motion for that?

CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, go ahead and make a motion -VICE-CHAIR

COUCH: All right.

CHAIR VICTORINO: --just because we're getting to the point where I want something done
so that, you know, we can move on.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. So I move that in the first be it resolved, number one, that the
term of 365 days be changed to 180 days, and that we add a clause that says that that
deadline can be extended by Council in the form of a resolution.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. It's been moved by Mr. Couch and seconded by Ms. Cochran.
And I think we all get that one. Any other discussion? All those in favor, signify by
saying "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Opposed? Let the record show nine "ayes," no "noes."
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VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Victorino, Vice-Chair Couch, and Councilmembers
Balsa, Carroll, Cochran, Crivello, Guzman, Hokama, and
White.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

None.

ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
MOTION CARRIED
ACTION: APPROVE amendment.

CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. What else, Ms. Willenbrink? Were getting closer. We're getting
closer. Go ahead. Ms. Willenbrink, do we have anything else?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes, let me scroll down.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, go ahead, scroll down. And I think, Mr. Guzman, you had some
ideas or suggestions you wanted to make, so.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh yeah. This is -MS. WILLENBRINK: Number five -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --number...
MS. WILLENBRINK: --is the beginning of the criteria.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, the criteria, yeah, yeah. Okay, okay. What did.. .you had
something, Mr. White, and.. .1 mean Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, I have several ones in the whereases but Ill stick to the,
what we have before us. The number four I'd like to make a motion to delete "shall
regularly meet in the Council Chamber" and replace it with "That the Special
Committee may regularly" or "shall regularly meet at a public location."
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, I'm going to tell you I don't want that.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Well you know what, I'm making -VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I second.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --the motion -VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I second.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --and it doesn't matter whether the Chair -CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Wait, wait. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --wants it or not.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, wait, wait, wait, wait. Okay. I wanted to make sure you -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I apologize, Chair -CHAIR VICTORINO: --add...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --but, you know, I...
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, I wanted you to make sure you add where they can also broadcast
for Akaku, okay, that's what I was going to get to before you cut me off
.(inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Well, Chair, you cut me off first, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Because we want the meeting to.. .yeah, well I just want to make sure
you got that.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And I was in the middle of a motion.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm going to blow the whistle.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. But would you add that in there?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Is it agreed upon that we're going to televise it? Is this...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, because that's what we agreed upon earlier.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, public location. I mean we're going to.. .it's implied. I
mean if you want to... I'm not going to put it in, that's just what I stated on the record
what my motion is, if you want to make an amendment to my motion. I got a second
by Mr. Couch. I think the next procedure is further discussion, and is there any
further discussion to make an amendment to my motion?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Excuse me, Chair?
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
MS. WILLENBRINK: I would just point out that you will be in budget session during a lot of
this, the whole month of April, and so meeting at other places will probably happen.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, okay. Okay, good. Any other discussion? Yes, Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: And first of all, can I get a restating of the motion just to make sure
we're clear -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --on what the motion was?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: May I, Chair, restate the motion?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Go ahead, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I move to amend--let's see--the number four to read as follows
"That the Special Committee shall regularly meet at a public location" or "at public
locations."
CHAIR VICTORINO: Not when feasible or anything else, you want to take all of that out?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Public locations is public locations. Could be the public
library, could be the public whatever, anything that's designated as public.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: But leaving in "and other public locations on Lanai and..."
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Well it says Maui, Molokai, so yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: "And that the Special Committee shall regularly meet at
public locations on Lanai, Maui, and Molokai."
MS. WILLENBRINK: Excuse me? Do you need to add something where it can be broadcast
by Akaku?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Sometimes it's not feasible.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: That was my second comment. If we're in budget all this time Akaku
is going to broadcast either us or that. It could be taped by Akaku, we can... that
would have to be a, something that we put in probably not the reso but maybe even
put it in the reso that it be taped by Akaku at a cost of $600 a meeting minimum and
available for broadcast later. Because there'll be two conflicting meetings going on,
that we always have broadcast here anyway for budget, so FYI.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. ...(inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I think I've already weighed in on my feelings about this. I think
these meetings have to be broadcast. I don't care whether they're taped and broadcast
later or live broadcast, but they have to be recorded so the public can watch. And we
have to cough up with the money, I don't know how we do it.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. No, I agree wholeheartedly. I think that was the general
discussion and consensus earlier. So would that... do you feel that would encompass
it? Would that take care of the whole issue like the way it's presented right there?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair, I think it can be covered like this and but we need to have
this in the minutes, I want it recorded -CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --so that when we check back we can say hey, this was the deal.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Yeah, yeah. No, no, that's all -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: There you go.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --I wanted to make sure -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: There you go.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --that it was put in there. That it has to be recorded and/or televised or
broadcast because we agreed to that very early in the process and I don't want that
changed.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So does this broadcast include existing contract we have
now?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Absolutely not. We're going to have to find some money.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Chair, do you like this?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Is that okay, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I'm just trying to get it to where -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --everything is -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So III -CHAIR VICTORINO: --incorporated.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --withdraw my motion and restate a motion for number four
to amend it as follows: "That the Special Committee shall regularly meet at a public
location on Lanai, Maui, and Molokai, and broadcasts shall be"--I would say "may be
available"--"shall be made available."
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Do I have a second?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Yeah, second.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, all right, very good. Okay, any other discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Seeing none, all those in favor...
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: No wait, whoa, whoa.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Whoa, whoa.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Discussion, discussion.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I thought everybody was okay with it.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Discussion, discussion.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. White? Sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: My only concern is that by stating Lanai and Molokai in
addition to Maui, it can be interpreted that it has to be done equally on all three
islands, and I know you had mentioned that once the recommendation is paa to take
it to the other islands. From a budgetary standpoint, I think I would be more
comfortable if we said "at public locations and broadcasts shall be made available."
CHAIR VICTORINO: Should we also... and try this idea, it's an idea, I'm not trying to cut
anybody off please, where interactive communication can be with Lanai and Molokai?
Okay. I mean I'm just throwing that idea out there. Because I agree with you,
Mr. White, it may but we would like their manao if the Special Committee is out there.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Absolutely.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, Ms. Crivello, since you're waving at me, I'm just asking.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So I ask too then, this is Maui County -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --and if you're going to have a representative from all of our
districts, how will their participation be if we don't have the budgetary dollars to
include the outlying districts? And if it's interactive, what happens if it goes down, do
we have the quorum, does the meeting continue? I think those are the kind of things
we need to ask too. So.. .well, I just throw that out.
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, and you bring a good point.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Because it's... is this only an issue that will be deliberated
only on Maui but then we want to include the districts such as Lanai, Hana, and
Molokai, so?
CHAIR VICTORINO: And we definitely want to include them. And that's why their
participation is so important. And I would hope that they'd, when we have members
from each of the districts, that they would be just like the Charter Commission, that
they would be afforded the opportunity to come in and be a part of the meeting. But
their interactive communication would be those who want to testify on any particular
subject matter. That's where I was trying to go with that particular point. Yes,
Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. And I kind of want this on the record so that if somebody
goes back and challenges. My concern with "broadcast shall be made available" is
that if for whatever reason Akaku can't be there, does that mean then we have to
provide video crew and sound and then have the tape sent to or the disk sent to
Akaku? Or.. .1 want to be very careful that we're not... if they can't show up, then the
meeting's cancelled. Whereas here, you know, if they can't show up or something
happens, we just move on and work, and do our work anyway. So that "shall" is a
little disconcerning [sic] to me.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Good point. Boy, we take one simple and we can make it very complex,
can't we. Go ahead, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Mr. Couch and I, I think, are on the same -CHAIR VICTORINO: That's dangerous -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --course here.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --but that's okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: My concern is about the "may be made available." What I really
want to see in that statement is "and all meetings shall be recorded" and either "done
by live broadcast" or "shown later" or whatever's practical or, you know, I really want
to be clear. This "may be made available" could be made available whenever. I mean I
can record it and put that disk in a drawer and it'll be available, but that's not what
I'm looking for.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. I'm looking for some guidance 'cause I think we're all going in the
same direction, but we're just trying to figure out the nuances. What does
this... 'cause it's going to cost money and we know that. And we want to spend some
money, I think we've agreed upon that, but to what extent may be the big issue.
Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair, I'd like to ask for a point of personal privilege. Can we
take our afternoon break and while we're on it, maybe Staff can come up with some -CHAIR VICTORINO: Only if you promise -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --language.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --to be back in ten minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I can do it in five.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well I'm going to give everybody till 2:55, okay, and anybody's who's
late, we're going to put a dollar can out there and we're going to start collecting some
money for this purpose. Help augment the budgetary shortfall here, Mr. White. What
do you think? Anyhow, let's take a ten-minute break. . . .(gavel)...
RECESS: 2:46 p.m.
RECONVENE: 2:59 p.m.
CHAIR VICTORINO: . . .(gavel)... The meeting of the Policy and Intergovernmental Affairs
Committee will now reconvene. Thank you very, very much. Ms. Balsa.. .well wait,
WME
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before we get started I gotta remind everyone we still have a motion on the floor by
Mr. Guzman. Okay. And it's been seconded so that's still a viable motion on the floor
at this time. But, Ms. Baisa, you wanted to bring up something? Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes. Thank you, Chair. During the break I was reminded that
we should be talking about video broadcasts -CHAIR VICTORINO: Cable.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --so that we're not talking about radio.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Actually according to Mr. Couch was cable.. .what was...
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Cablecast -CHAIR VICTORINO: Cablecast.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --is the actual term.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well whatever the.. .he's the -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, cablecast.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --techie.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, he's the techie.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: But let's have it right.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And since he brought it up to my attention, I was going to bring it up
but thank you very much. So -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --we're cablecast, okay?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Perfect.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Cablecast.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Is that one word?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, one word. Is that one word?
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VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Yes, yes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: It's one word. Yes, thank you. Cablecast, okay. It's so good to have all
these experts in the room. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, wait, wait. These are suggestions.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, no, I like it.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Your motion is still on the floor by the way.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right. Can I do a friendly amendment?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Or you can withdraw and make the new motion accordingly if you want
to, up to you, whichever way.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Can't we just do a friendly amendment to adopt the...
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: No objections.
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, I'd rather take away the whole motion and really start clean.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, I withdraw the motion.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Please? Yeah. Please, if you don't mind, Mr. Guzman, please.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I withdraw the motion.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Second.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, now if you want to, please, mister...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: If you don't mind, Chair?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: She just caught one on the first one and the second one "shall
be made..."
CHAIR VICTORINO: Locations.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, okay, you caught the other one too.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: They got it.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: She got 'em both.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Within the two days.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: While I was trying to get your attention, she was fixing it.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. So, Mr. Guzman, would you like to make the motions?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes, thank you, Chair. I'd like to move to amend number four
and five to read as follows: "That the Special Committee shall regularly meet at public
locations throughout the County." And number five "That each Special Committee
meeting shall be cablecast and the recording shall be made available to the public
within two days of the meeting."
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I second, Mr. Chair, with the caveat that we renumber everything
below 'cause that would have changed number five, the old number five, so.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I think we did. Well okay, and let's not get too complex right now. I
think we're okay with six and seven. We're okay, Mr. Couch. Any other questions?
Any other discussion, I should say? Mr. Hokama, please.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. So who's going to enforce this two
days? Is it you, Chairman? Who's going to enforce this two days of the meeting, the
requirement that we're placing?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good question. Mister... okay, I'm going to ask Mr. Kushi and then I'm
going to ask you, Mr. Couch, because you have a lot more knowledge when it comes to
cablecast, okay. Mr. Kushi, do you have any answer to Mr. Hokama's question?
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, no I don't. I guess as a practical matter if the recording is not made
available within two days, the question becomes does it, did that meeting ever exist,
and I don't think such a drastic measure would be brought up but just thinking out
loud. The word "shall" kind of concerns me, maybe "shall be within two days
whenever feasible," some kind of, some sort of language.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: When practical.
MR. KUSHI: Well, assuming that they have funding. But again, yeah, I don't really have an
answer.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: Maybe Mr. Couch does.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Couch, would you like to address that question, if you may?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Certainly. The, it would have to be a contract and whoever does the
recording generally can get it done within minutes, so as far as who enforces it, that's,
I mean who enforces it now? It's one of those things that I would imagine that since
this isn't an ordinance, it doesn't go anywhere. As far as the technical capability, yes,
it would be available within minutes. Could be -CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --within hour. So as far as enforcing it, I have no comment on that
one way or the other.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Hang on, Ms. Balsa. Mr. Kushi, you had your hand up -MR. KUSHI: Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --and you may want to...
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, I understand the intent of the Committee to say, to require or
request that the meetings be broadcast or recorded; however, as a committee subject
to the Sunshine Law, they need to keep minutes of that meeting anyway, and it should
be, minutes should be available within 30 days of the meeting. So it's not definitely
precluded from the public to find out what the hell... I mean what went on at the, those
meetings.
CHAIR VICTORINO: We heard that but that's okay.
MR. KUSHI: So, you know, I think it's covered by the Sunshine Law.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. Balsa, you had something you wanted to add?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah, just being smart, I was going to say can be complaint
driven like everything else.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Okay.
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MS. WILLENBRINK: Chair?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, go ahead, Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Generally right now with our contract with Akaku, meetings, DVDs are
made available the very next day. Not when the fire happened, but -CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. WILLENBRINK: --generally speaking.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Is that okay with you, Mr. Hokama? Does that answer your questions?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, it just goes to prove how something maybe
simplistic that we started with, because for me you guys talking about a lot of money
that we haven't budgeted for yet. Okay. And my thing is eventually you gotta come
back to budget because let's make sure if this needs additional resources, we put the
resource to get the best result possible. But to think this is not going to cost money is
very naïve on everybody's part.
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, I agree with you, Mr. Hokama. And I think a budget amendment
will be prepared as soon as we can get the final draft and what we intend to do. I
think.. .I've been assured by the Chair because it's going to be coming out of Council
Services if I'm not mistaken, that a budget amendment would be forthcoming very
shortly thereafter. Am I correct, Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, a budget will be forthcoming and if necessary a budget
amendment.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. All right. So I hope that rests everybody's mind at
this point in time. Okay. So we're okay with that? Any further discussion? Yes,
Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Just want to make sure that we are not restricting ourselves if a,
Akaku can't show up or something happens with the cable, are we, do we have to
cancel the meeting? That's my only concern.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Kushi, I'll ask you Lo answer LiiaL queslion.
MR. KUSHI: I'm sorry, please repeat it. Somebody was bothering me.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Repeat the question please, Mr. Couch.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: The way it's written now, number five, if Akaku can't make it, they
have equipment problems or whatever and cannot record, video tape or... it's not video
tape anymore, or cablecast the meeting, then the meeting has to stop. Is that the
way.. .if the.. .can that be interpreted the way it is in number five?

-
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MR. KUSHI: I mean, Mr. Couch or Member Couch, I suppose it could, but I will defend the
continuation of the meeting because they need to make minutes anyway -VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. I'm fine with that -MR. KUSHI: --as a matter of. . .(inaudible)...
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --as long as we're not restricting our.. .or the committee there. Thank
you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you very much for that clarification. Ms. Willenbrink?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. To clarify and I may be wrong, but do
budget amendments need to come down from the Mayor's Office?
CHAIR VICTORINO: I don't think so because this is coming from Council Services which
Mr. White I think...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: We can amend our own budget.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, comes down from our own budget, see.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Unless we're asking for additional money.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Any more questions in this area? Seeing none, all those in favor
of number four and five as presented, signify by saying "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Opposed? Let the record show nine "ayes," no "noes."
VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Victorino, Vice-Chair Couch, and Councilmembers
Balsa, Carroll, Cochran, Crlvello, Guzman, Hokama, and
White.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

None.

ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
MOTION CARRIED
ACTION: APPROVE amendment.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you very much. Okay, Ms. Willenbrink, moving right along. I do
admit this does help an awful lot, doesn't it? Okay. Where's the other one? I think
there was one more or two more, Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Criteria.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh yeah, the expertise, my most favorite subject matter. Again, ladies
and gentlemen and the viewing audience, I really believe we need some, and I think
I've heard this time in and time out from others, some expertise in some areas so that
we can know, we can be comfortable knowing that these people have a good concept of
what's trying to transpire. I want the general public to be involved but I want
somebody who understands maybe business dynamics, the hospitality industry,
construction unions. I try to put all of those out there but I'm not, I don't want to be
very specific, but something to do with trades, farming is a big part of our community,
all these other issues should have expertise in this area, some of our people, the
people that we are looking to bring aboard. So I open the floor to discussion and I'll
start with you, Mr. Carroll. What kind of expertise would you.. .you know, do you have
any suggestions?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: From the general community, the expertise I would be
looking for were people that had worked with government, with nonprofits, the people
that work with government on special committees, people that were just interested
and that knew or had jobs before in government, whether it's State, County or even
Federal, that has some knowledge of how the workings are. And more importantly,
people that work well within the community and are working at this time with the
community so they'll have good communications with those in their district.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I like Mr. Carroll's list. I think it's very, very important that
whoever we appoint to these committees... to this committee is committed and has the,
is going to show up at the meetings. You know I notice that we have serious problems
with quorums, and so if you take this on, I hope that you're going to be there
99 percent of the time because we are talking about a timetable. And trying to do
something without a quorum is really, really bad. So people need to realize this is a
serious time commitment.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And I agree with my fellow Members'
comments so far. And I think, you know, the whole culture aspect too of— and
and I think
that's where it comes in that people from the area that are familiar with different
aspects. But, you know, I hate... I think that the Hawaiian culture needs to be
incorporated in decision making here too and kept at the forefront, so amongst, yeah,
business and the hospitality, nonprofit, and all the other things that have been
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mentioned thus far. So that wasn't really listed here originally but I think, you know,
just to have someone with that kind of knowledge too, that background is going be
helpful. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Pretty much agree with everybody. I won't take up time. Thanks.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well, I guess defining expertise is where we're at, and for me
it's the heart and soul of the community. I believe in community based, and when you
come with that, you're an expert of what, how you want to be governed. And not so
much all the professional hats. You know I can see where maybe Council Service [sic]
will provide the researcher and things of that sort. But I guess for us is how you're
going to define the expertise, and to me comes the bottom line, it's the people.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What I'm looking for is people that understand our County. I
would say maybe for me and Ms. Crivello, we would call it being maa to your home, to
your district, to your island. Plus I think we need people who's been vested in the
community for a long time. You know we came from a board of supervisory structure
in the '60s so we have a sense of that type of governance, then we went to the charter
form. I would say before we start looking at possible options to change, the question
should be what are you trying to change and why? What is driving this at this point
in time? Why wasn't it brought up two years ago? Four years ago? We've heard that
it was discussed multiple times, but it never made it to where it had to be on the ballot
for various reasons. So one, I would say is, is it truly broken or is it just current
political dissatisfaction? You know for me it was brought up about satisfaction of
various levels of government. That's true but I think we should note that while the
Federal government has a 20 percent approval rating, state governments have an
approval rating of 40 percent, local governments is above 60 percent. So if we're going
to look at governments in different structures, the current form of, that is most
responsive and has the highest approval rating is local governments. And I think
mostly it's because local governments tend to get the job done, we cannot afford to be
partisan. Now here to the, every place I've talked to, there's no red pothole or blue
pothole, there's just a pothole that needs to be addressed and corrected. I would say
that is the, I would say main thing about local governments, we tend to get the job
done. I think there's more things for us to be working on than this question at this
time. So I'll leave it at that.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, I would agree with my colleagues on their criteria. I'd
also like to add number C in Mr. White's reso which would read as "The members of
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the public with special expertise, interest, or experience in municipal governance,
public administration, or business administration."
CHAIR VICTORINO: No problem. You want to put that as part as number six there? Where
is the expertise, is that number six? Did you hear Mr. Guzman's ...it was number five
of Mr. White's.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes, I see it here.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. WILLENBRINK: I've just been typing away and you can take anything out that you
want.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Why don't we add that, Ms. Willenbrink. Go ahead and put that up
there, if you don't mind?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: 'Cause I know you put down County and various communities, the
Hawaiian culture, economic climate of the County, affordable housing. You want to
add that in there? I mean we can change the wording around, so. But I'd like to add
that. I agree with you, Mr. Guzman. Okay, please, if you would add that. And then
anything else.. .111 go to Mr. White. Mr. Guzman, anything else?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I'm good.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, okay. So add that number five on Mr. White's. Mr. White, do you
have anything else you would like to see under expertise?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think we're covering about every base that there is on Maui.
So I'm fine.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And I think that was my ultimate goal is to cover every base to make
sure that every facet of our community and the general community at large is
inclusive, because if you get somebody who's from Upcountry and, you know, no
offense to you, Ms. Balsa, let's say Upcountry who's a farmer, now we've got a farmer.
I not saying that's the only one we're going to get from Upcountry but, you know, if we
get somebody from Hana who's a farmer then we get a farmer. Because we can't lose
the agricultural aspect of our community so agriculture has to be a part of it, it is still
a big part of our community and I don't want to let that loss. So again, anything else
that you all want to add to this? Yes, Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Guzman brought up a good point. I like
all of Mr. White's number six except for it should be 11 and we can take out "current"
in both A and B, but the wording there says it all and I think that's what we're all
looking for.
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MS. WILLENBRINK: Eleven?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Number six -CHAIR VICTORINO: Number six now, number six.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --of Mr. White's proposal says "That the Special Committee shall be
composed of' change it to "11 voting members who are Maui County residents, such
as the following: (a) former elected officials at the County, State, or Federal level; (b)
former officers of the County of Maui, including former members of the Charter
Commission; or (c) members of the public with special expertise, interest, or
experience in municipal governance, public administration, or business
administration. I think that sums it right up what we're trying to say.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You like that?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I do.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I got no problem with that. Okay, Mr. White, yours made it in. Under
the radar but we got it in. All right, you know, I mean I have no problem with that,
you know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's good.
CHAIR VICTORINO: So I mean if we include everybody, now hopefully when we go out to our
districts.., oh, before we go on -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --are we good with this? Do we have consensus or do we have to take a
vote on this?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: On the one I just read?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, that's the one we just put up.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah, yes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: May I see it in full?

-97-

POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 2, 2015

CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, can you bring it back down?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, it's hard to... can you reduce the size of the print a little
bit so we get it on the same page?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, you guys wanted it big and now you want it small, oh my.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: It's just the way it falls.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That won't work. . . (inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just put more space between five and six.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Where did you put it? Down, down, down.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: There you go.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Here, this is where I was starting but it's going to take me quite some
time to type all of this in. Shall I read it again?
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, no, just type it in. Well take a five-minute recess. . . .(gavel).
RECESS: 3:20 p.m.
RECONVENE: 3:28 p.m.
CHAIR VICTORINO: . . . (gavel)... The Policy and Intergovernmental Relations... I mean
Affairs.. .relations, oh my God, Affairs Committee will reconvene. Ms. Willenbrink tried
to put it on the same page but could not. Well, what I'm going to do is right from the
top, Ms. Willenbrink, would you read it. And, Mr. Couch, if there's a difference, can
you please clarify it for us. But, Ms. Willenbrink. . . oh, you got 'em on the same page.
Okay. All right, there you go. But no mind the formatting, you know, we cannot
format. Okay.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes, thank you, Chair. There is one small formatting issue that you can
see.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, no problem.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Number six "That the Special committee shall be composed of 11 voting
members who are Maui County residents, such as the following: (a) former elected
officials at the County, State, or Federal level; (b) former officers of the County of Maui,
including former members of the Charter Commission; or (c) members of the public
with special expertise, interest, or experience in municipal governance, public
administration, or business administration with membership seats allotted from each
of the voting districts and two at large as follows.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: And then we have the rest okay. Do I have a motion?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: So move.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Second?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Second.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. I have a motion by Mr. Couch and seconded by Mr. Guzman.
Ms. Crivello, you had something you'd like to add?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. What I really see missing in all of this is local
government is really closest to the people, and you have all your professional listing,
your experience in Charter, blah, blah, blah and all that. But where does it come, who
will design or try to design something that. . . design some sort of governance where it
represents that of the community basis, community base that's going to be speaking
from.. .you know, I think Ms. Cochran tried to fit that in with some sort of Hawaiian
approach. But I just would have to say sort of the kamaaina. You know I mean you
forget why we're trying to.. .you know, I have to say Prince Kuhio created local
government during the territorial days and that's what we're based off. And that's
because local, local, the people themselves, the community have to have their voice in
there. So can have all the expertise but if you don't have the naau or the heart that
really will speak on behalf of the community. And maybe because I come from the
rural area, but I hear it the same way overall in Maui, it's representation of who we
are, you know. I don't care if you came from the mainland or what have you because
that voice can be just as well spoken on behalf, but we lack community based period
in there, as far as expertise.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, Mr. Couch? I mean I'm open because this was what you guys all
said you wanted -VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Sure, sure.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --and now we're not. Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: You know we are discussing and we need to come up, we may need to
come up with some sort of criteria. We've, we're all listening to this discussion, we're
all here now and we're the ones who are going to be giving the nominations and the
voting.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Right.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: So do we even need to put any kind of requirements of qualifications
in here? We all know what we're trying to get and we all have a chance to vote on it
when we come up with the names. So do we even need to have any of that in there?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Wasn't me, baby.
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VICE-CHAIR COUCH: No, I understand.
CHAIR VICTORINO: It was you guys.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I'm just wondering...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Would you withdraw your motion?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Yeah, I would like to actually.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. And withdraw the second.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, I will not withdraw the second.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, okay. Oops, here we go.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I think there should be criteria, and if we can add a D section.
We can put in... I believe that Ms. Cochran and Ms. Crivello, if they can come up with
some kind of language for a section D as a fourth criteria. But I think we should have
criteria. I mean you gotta have criteria. I mean I'm sorry, I'm just.. .1 think we can add
in language that could also at least be somewhat compromised, you know, at least
satisfy Ms. Cochran and Ms. Crivello, that type of language.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I said from the beginning, this is your guys' document so you folks give
me . . . (inaudible)... Ms. Crivello, raised your hand but Ms. Balsa had raised hers
before.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Fine, that's fine.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. So I going let her go first -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --and then I going let you come right after that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay? Just be ready. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: When I look at C -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --members of the public with special expertise, interest, or
experience in municipal governance, public administration, or business
administration. I would like to add in there and I think what Ms. Crivello is trying to
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express and it's very difficult to capture what she's talking about in words, but I think
we all understand that she wants to make sure that we have people that are invested
in the community, know the community, represent the community. What about
something like community involvement or, you know, experience in working in
community? Because I think that's really important along with this other stuff.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Do you know your community? If you know your community,
you'll probably do a great job.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Working within the community, working.. .okay, Ms. Crivello, your turn.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I like Mr. Couch's suggestion that we don't need all these
resume kind of, to qualify, but we're going to come up with whatever the applicants
can put in, what, why they feel they're qualified. In looking at this and if we're talking
about efficiency of government, to me the number one is the financial data person that
can do the comparative studies. Other than that, you know, when I think about
serving on the Charter Commission, I don't.. .you know, you put in your application
and those who selected you look at what you bring to the table as far as
representation of your community. And, you know, no matter how you look at it, all
nine of us, we're elected and whether we go with the remaining, the Mayor is elected,
voices of the people have to be heard. And whether or not you're involved in
community, could be an advocate for the community, but I say let the application
process go through, and at that point, we make a decision instead of having all these
what's required. You know, I don't know.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You know what, I'm going to do it this way. Let's take a vote on it.
Those who want the expertise to stay there will vote, yeah, and you vote yea or nay
and then we can move on, because again, we're going to spin our wheels in the mud
right now. I see some want, some don't want. Okay, so with that being said, there's a
motion on the floor and a second to support this.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Is there still a motion on the floor?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, still a motion. No, he.. .1 asked him to rescind his motion and the
seconder did not want to.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Actually according to Robert's Rules the seconder has no voice.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: He can't, he has no voice. There's no motion to second.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: So let me... Mr. Chair, to...
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, I'm not going to ask anymore. Remove it please. Just remove it. I
am not going to waste any more time discussing it. Remove it please, Ms. Willenbrink.
And then, Mr. Couch, what do you have to say?
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VICE-CHAIR COUCH: My comment is that, you know, put it in terms that we can all relate
to is you can't define.. .we're spending years to try and define agriculture. You can't
define agriculture. You can't define what expertise is necessary. We're all here, it's
our responsibility to determine who those people will be and whether or not they have
what we feel is their proper expertise. So that's why I feel it's better that we take out it
of-CHAIR VICTORINO: Taken out already.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --words and...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. It's done.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: All right. I don't want to waste any more time on something that, you
know, hey you guys said, that's fine. Moving right along, any more discussion in just
leaving it the way it is?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No wait, we're...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
CHAIR VICTORINO: I didn't touch nothing.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Is that it?
CHAIR VICTORINO: That's it, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: There's nothing above it?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, there's no criteria.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Where's the six or seven? Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay? Anything else? Are we comfortable now with this entire package
the way it's done? And I'm sorry, you know, I may be a little grouchy at certain points,
but, you know, you tell me go east and then now we go west and I understand, I've
gone with the flow. And I just want to make sure that you all comfortable with this
because I'm going to make a request after we approve the conceptual committee, the
resolution, I should say. Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. And I think we're okay up until
here. But for me the big question is who is going to nominate these people? And
eventually how is it going to be confirmed? We're each going to bring a couple names
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and we all sit down together and discuss and approve or what is the next step?
Because we need to get those people.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well the next step is alter we approve this step, then I can tell you what
the next step will be and see what you think about that. Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: All right. Any more changes or any more on this whole aspect? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Just a question.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: The way this is stated.. .well, earlier we were discussing that, I
think it was Ms. Balsa's idea that we each nominate somebody. So the question is,
the way it's written now is that we would not be able to.. .if we felt somebody had
qualifications that was outside our district...
CHAIR VICTORINO: We got two at large.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right, but that's up for grabs. We only get to nominate one...
CHAIR VICTORINO: What my suggest... and okay, so I'll let the cat out of the bag so that
everybody's happy. I tell you, I cannot wait to get one thing done, I'm moving to the
next. What I was going to ask everyone is to bring in at least three names, two
preferably from your district that you feel that you'd really like to see on this, and a
third name that could be used for at large and/or if that person comes from your
district, if the first two weren't, were, I don't know, not acceptable. I don't feel we're
going to have too many problems with acceptability by all of 'em, 'cause I think we
respect each other's opinions on people from our districts. But I think that's the way I
would like to do it, and I was going to do it on Wednesday at 1:30. I was going to call,
recess this meeting and ask everybody to come back at 1:30 on Wednesday with your
names prepared. But I do want to remind everybody at that Council meeting we
asked, Mr. White, right, to bring names to be prepared today. But with that being said
and now that we've kind of finalized what we're looking at, that was going to be my
suggestion for next, for this coming Wednesday's meeting at 1:30. Bring your names
and we can go from there. How's that sound?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I would support that.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Any... is there consensus on that matter? Okay, go ahead,
Mr. White, you had something else you wanted to add? No?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I'm fine.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: We can discuss it Wednesday.
CHAIR VICTORINO: So what I would like to do, ladies and gentlemen, my question to you,
do you feel... do we have to have a motion? Maybe we need a motion to accept this
outline template for this resolution. Yes, Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I would be happy to make that motion
provided we all get a... and it'll be a shock for everybody to hear this but we all get a
printed copy so we can see it.
CHAIR VICTORINO: S'alright, I will get you a printed copy. I promise I will get you a
printed...
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Prior to the vote.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well to, prior to a vote.., okay, meeting in recess. . . .(gavel).
RECESS: 3:41 p.m.
RECONVENE: 3:56 p.m.
CHAIR VICTORINO: . . . (gavel)... The meeting of the Policy and Intergovernmental Affairs
Committee will reconvene. Members, a printed copy of the final version or the version
that has been agreed upon to this point is in front of you. With no objections, I would
like to defer this matter till Wednesday 1:30 in this Chamber so that the names can be
brought forth to be put in so that the final version of the resolution would be inclusive
of the names that you will be bringing forward. So any objections to deferring this
matter? Yes, mister...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think we just recess.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Recess, yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, did I call back recess?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You can recess.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I'm just...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, oh. Oh, okay, okay. I apologize. Thank you for that correction.
I'm thinking, hey, we gotta defer. Okay.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (inaudible)...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. And so well recess until... okay, thank you, Mr. White, for
correcting me. I correct you all the time. Oh my God. We will recess until
Wednesday, 1:30 in this Chamber. My question is, will all of you be available on
Wednesday? 'Cause there was... because of Mr. Carroll's generosity, he cancelled his
meeting so that slot became available. I know I am and I would hope all of you are,
that you can attend. Because this is going to be very crucial, we're at that point where
we've kind of resolved most of the issues, now we need the names and a just couple
other housekeeping, and we can bring this forward to the Council in its entirety. So
can we have this, do we have consensus that all of you can be here on 1:30,
Wednesday afternoon, November 4th, for this recess? Okay. Then what Ill say is this,
I'd like.. .what? Who's waving? You're waving, mister... oh I'm sorry, Mr. Kushi, I
didn't see you wave.
MR. KUSHI: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, sir.
MR. KUSHI: I need to say this.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, go ahead.
MR. KUSHI: In the abundance of caution -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
MR. KUSHI: --I know you've agreed upon the template -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
MR. KUSHI: --but you need to.. .you're going to fill in the blanks on Wednesday, is that my
understanding. Because the nominees are not yet known, the public doesn't know
who's going to be nominated, technically it should be on the agenda; however, I would
suggest at Wednesday's meeting 'cause the meeting is still continued, if you proceed
accordingly, do your appointments, but keep in mind when this comes to the full
Council, there may be, the public may come in and testify for or against any nominee.
And I know Mr. Carroll has strong feelings about doing committee work at the Council
level, but I suggest you leave that opportunity open.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. I think we agree on, to that aspect, Mr. Kushi. I would hope that
Wednesday when we put out these names, that hopefully theyll be acceptable to the
community at large. I think we're trying to do what our communities are asking us,
SO.

MR. KUSHI: Well, my point, Mr. Chair --
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CHAIR VICTORINO: I know, I know.
MR. KUSHI: --the public doesn't know -CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, okay.
MR. KUSHI: --who you're...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. So with that in mind...
MS. WILLENBRINK: Chair?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes?
MS. WILLENBRINK: With the body's permission, I will accept all the revisions that you
discussed today.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, with no objections to the revisions.
MS. WILLENBRINK: It's in track changes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. I think that's what we agreed upon. Mr. White, you had
something you wanted to add? No? So with that in mind, I will see all of you.. .this
meeting will be in recess till 1:30 p.m., Wednesday, November 4th Yes, Madam Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I just want to confirm the homework assignment.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. So on Wednesday when we come, we should have two
names from our district and one at large?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well two names or even a third name from your district that could be
used at large.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I understand.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: But so three names you're looking for?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Three names, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You know if you want to bring three names from your district, that one
could be used at large, that may be another option, but because if the first name is
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not acceptable by the group, maybe we have to move to number two. So I want to give
you an opportunity to have somebody that you feel comfortable with.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. Just want to be sure we got the right homework. Thank
you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes. Any questions on that? Seeing none, this meeting of the
Intergovernment and... shucks, this meeting of the Policy and Intergovernmental
(gavel). ..
Affairs Committee is now in recess.
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